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December 22, 2020
The Citizens of Orange County:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the County of Orange, State of California (County), for the
year ended June 30, 2020, is hereby submitted in accordance with the provisions of Sections 25250 and 25253 of
the Government Code of the State of California. The report contains financial statements that have been prepared in
conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) prescribed for governmental entities.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the County. A comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed and
established to provide reasonable assurance that the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and changes in financial position of County
Funds. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County’s comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the
financial statements will be free from material misstatements.

The CAFR has been audited by the independent certified public accounting firm of Eide Bailly LLP. The goal of the
independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements of the County
for the year ended June 30, 2020, are free of material misstatement. The independent certified public accounting
firm has issued an unmodified (clean) opinion on the County’s basic financial statements as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2020. The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

This letter of transmittal is designed to complement and should be read in conjunction with Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) that immediately follows the independent auditor’s report. MD&A provides a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The County, incorporated in 1889 and located in the southern part of the State of California, is one of the major
metropolitan areas in the state and nation. The County occupies a land area of 799 square miles with a coastline of
42 miles serving a population of over 3 million. It represents the third most populous county in the state and ranks
sixth in the nation.

The County converted to a charter county as a result of the March 5, 2002, voter approval of Measure V, which
provides for an electoral process to fill mid-term vacancies on the Board of Supervisors. Before Measure V, as a
general law county, mid-term vacancies would otherwise be filled by gubernatorial appointment. In November 2008,
voters approved Measure J, which added Article Ill, Section 301 to the Charter of Orange County requiring voter
approval for increases in future retirement system benefits of any employee, legislative officer, or elected official of
the County in the Orange County Employees Retirement System (OCERS) or any successor retirement system,
with the exception of statutorily-established cost of living adjustments, salary increases, and annual leave or
compensatory time cash-outs. In June 2012, voters approved Measure B, which requires that any Orange County
Supervisors elected on or after June 5, 2012 can enroll only in the minimum pension option, i.e., the least lucrative
pension plan, offered to Orange County employees. At present, the minimum pension plan is a 1.62% at 65 pension
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plan. This measure amends the County Charter and applies to any current or previous Supervisor. In June 2016,
voters approved Measure B, which requires the County Auditor-Controller to review any Countywide measure
placed on the ballot and prepare a fiscal impact statement.

The County is like a general law county and governed by a five-member Board of Supervisors (Board), who
each serve four-year terms, and annually elect a Chair and Vice-Chair. The Supervisors represent districts that are
each approximately equal in population. The district boundaries were revised effective September 6, 2011,
incorporating the results of the 2010 census. A County Executive Officer (CEO) oversees 15 County departments,
and elected officials serving as department heads oversee six County departments. The Supervisorial Districts map
below shows the boundaries of Orange County and the areas governed by each member of the Board.

SAN DIEGO
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The County provides a full range of services Countywide, for the unincorporated areas, and contracted services for
cities. These services are outlined in the following table:

Countywide Services Unincorporated Area Services

Affordable Housing

(Housing Authority) Veterans Services Animal Care & Control Libraries

Agricultural Commissioner Indigent Medical Services Flood Control Parks

Airport Jails & Juvenile Facilities Land Use Waste Disposal Collection
ggirl\(/jiCFérsotection & s Juvenile Justice Commission Law Enforcement

Child Support Services Landfills & Solid Waste Disposal

Clerk-Recorder Law Enforcement

gg;\?i?:gs& REEE Probationary Supervision Contracted Services for Cities

District Attorney/Public

Administrator Public Assistance Animal Care & Control Libraries
Elec_tlons_& Voter Public Defender/ Alternate Law Enforcement Pub!lc W_orks &
Registration Defense Engineering
TS E eI e Public & Behavioral Health Ut'“tY Billing and CthCk

Health Remittance Processing

Flood Contr_ol & Senior Services Sources: County departments

Transportation

OC Parks Collection & Appeals

Disaster Preparedness Weights & Measures

Grand Jury Property Tax Assessment,

Apportionment & Collection

Public Guardian

In addition to these services, the County is also financially accountable for the reporting of component units, which
can be either blended or discretely reported. Blended units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part
of the County's operations and, therefore, data from these units are combined with data of the County. The County
has two discretely presented component units, the Children and Families Commission of Orange County (CFCOC)
and CalOptima, which require discrete presentation in the government-wide financial statements. The County has
one fiduciary component unit, the Orange County Housing Finance Trust. The following entities are presented as
blended component units in the basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020: the Orange County
Flood Control District, Orange County Housing Authority, Orange County Public Financing Authority, Capital
Facilities Development Corporation, South Orange County Public Financing Authority, Orange County Public
Facilities Corporation, County Service Areas, Special Assessment Districts, Community Facility Districts, and In-
Home Supportive Services Public Authority. Additional information on these entities can be found in Note 1,
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, in the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements section.

The County maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the Board. Activities of the General Fund and most of the Special Revenue, Debt
Service, Capital Projects and Permanent Funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of
budgetary control (that level which cannot be exceeded without action by the Board) is at the legal fund-budget
control-unit level, which represents a department or an agency. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this
report for each Governmental Fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. The Budgetary
Comparison Statements for the General Fund and major Special Revenue Funds are part of the Basic Financial
Statements. The Budgetary Comparison Schedules for the nonmajor Governmental Funds with appropriated annual
budgets are presented in the Supplemental Information section for Governmental Funds. The County also
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maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbered
appropriations do not lapse at year-end; outstanding encumbrances are carried forward. Additional information on
the budgetary process can be found in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, in the Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements section.

The County’s eGovernment website portal at www.ocgov.com provides online services and extensive information
about County government to Orange County residents, businesses, partners, and visitors. The County’s website
provides information and online services to the public 24/7. It includes information about the Board, County job
listings, purchasing bid solicitations, assessment appeals, links to court information and local court rules, voter
information, County permits and forms, public safety, health and human services programs and financial
information. The site also provides several online services, including live and archived Board meeting videos, the
ability to order birth, death and marriage certificates, search fictitious business names, find polling locations and
election results, how to license pets, pay property taxes and subscribe to receive emergency alerts. The County
continuously strives to improve a constituent’s ability to conduct business online with the County.

FACTORS AFFECTING ECONOMIC CONDITION Table 1: Unemployment Rate Comparison

Local Economy _ _ July 2020
Primary Government Entity Unemployment Rate

Two indicators of the County_economy are: how well _the United States 10.2%

local economy performs relative to surrounding counties, Californi 13.7%

the State, and the Nation and its own historical trends. alifornia 0

This section provides data for various indicators that  LoSAngeles County 18.2%

summarize the current and projected outlook of the Riverside County 13.7%

County’s economy. San Bernardino County 13.1%

The alobal d | it of th San Diego County 12.3%

e global economy contracted severely as a result of the Oranage Count 12.3%
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic and the g Y e
shutdown measures employed in an attempt to contain the
virus. Recovery in the post-COVID-19 economy is Unemployment Rate
anticipated to be sluggish and protracted. In terms of W United States
historical trends, current and projected activity suggests California

that economic growth at the local level will follow national 15.0% 12.3% | e County
and state trends. 12.0% +~
The County’s unemployment rate continues to be lower 9.0%
than most surrounding Southern California counties and 6.0%
the State, but is higher than that of the Nation (see Table P P
1). 3.0%
0.0%

According to the California Department of Finance, inflation,
as measured by the Consumer Price Index (CPI), is Unemployment
expected to be 2.5% for Orange County, higher than both Rate

the State and U.S. at 2.3% and 1.6%, respectively, in 2020
(see Table 2).

Table 2: 2020 — Projected Increase of the CPI

United States California Orange County

1.6% 2.3% 2.5%

Sources: State of California, Employment Development Department
California Department of Finance, April 2020
Note: Unemployment rates are for the month of July 2020
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According to the Department of Housing and Urban
Development, the County’s median family income is
expected to be $103,000 (absolute dollars) in 2020,
compared to $97,900 (absolute dollars) in 2019. The
median family income in the County continues to exceed
all surrounding Southern California counties, the State,
and the Nation (see Table 3).

Table 3: Median Family Income Comparison

Median Family Income

Primary Government Entity (absolute dollars)
United States $78,500
California $87,100
Orange County $103,000
San Diego County $92,700
Los Angeles County $77,300
Riverside County $75,300

Sources: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, 2020

Comparisons of Inflation and Median Family

Income
B0 e e s 3%
$103
$100 - 2.5%-
g *
[ 2
29 $80 +———n———————— - ——————— 2% g
>8 o
Z g 2
260 M- -z
e e
E $40 A EEEEES e B o e aeSS 1%.§
2
£
$20 -——— - ——————— - ——————— S
0%
United States California Orange County

Sources: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, 2020
California Department of Finance, April 2020

According to the California Association of Realtors, the
median home sales price for existing single-family
detached homes in Orange County was $880,000
(absolute dollars) in July 2020, representing a 4.8%
increase from July 2019. The median sales price in
Orange County continues to exceed all surrounding
counties (see Table 4).

In terms of internal trends, current and projected
indicators forecast a decline or minimal recovery in the
Orange County economy, with job growth expected to
decrease by 8.0% in 2020.

Table 4: Median Home Sales Price Comparison-
(existing single-family detached homes only)
Southern California Counties — July 2020

Primary Median Home  Median Home
Government Sales Price Change Sales Price
Entity increase(decrease) (absolute dollars)
Orange County 4.8% $880,000
San Diego County 10.6% $719,000
Los Angeles County 6.9% $653.570
Riverside County 10.0% $462,000
San Bernardino County 12.2% $350,000

Source: California Association of Realtors, July 2020

Table 4: Comparison of Median Home Sales Price
and Price Changes Among Counties

$1,000 m———————————— —+ 14%
| |
3000 S B 5 () 4
I * |10y
$800 -:— S S SO
+ 'L
|
7 $700 — Comm - 10%
2 | |
g8 9000 - o o
x
2 3500 o - - 1
c
< 0,
$400 -:— —— 1 == ——- '_““‘|r 6%
| 4.8% |
$300 - — -
| |
$200 1+ -1 ——— ——- F——1 —-
| L 204
$100 + o e B
Orange  San Diego Los Angeles Riverside San
County County County County  Bernardino
County

Source: California Association of Realtors, July 2020

Percentage Change in Sales Price
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Table 5 shows various internal indicators reflecting a
decline or minimal growth of the County’s economy. The

Table 5: Orange County Historical Data

unemployment rate increased from 3.1% in July 2019 [RIEeTaer{MIaTe[{eF=\To] & TI0) K< T~ o iy Aol K 10 K 210 210
relative to 12.3% in_ July 2020. Jc_)b growth is expec_ted to Unemployment
decrease by 8.0% in 2020. Median home sales price for Rates 45% 3.9% 3.3% 3.1% 12.3%
existing single-family detached homes are forecasted t0 aAnnual Job Growth
increase by 1.4% in 2020, relative to an increase of 0.9% Rates 26% 21% 2.0% 1.3% (8.0%)
in 2019, according to the June 2020 Champan University .
Economic & Business Review. Sales tax receipts are AnnualCPlinflaton —1.7%  2.1% 3.5% 3.4% 2.5%
forecasted to decrease by 12.1% in 2020. Median Home Sales
Price Increase 43% 62% 48% 09% 1.4%
Annual Change in
Sales Tax Receipts 28% 33% 3.6% 3.0% (12.1%)

Data in Table 5 for prior years may be different from previous years CAFR due to the timing of obtaining data.

Data for 2020 is based on forecasted data

Orange County Historical Data Comparison
(Shown as a year-to-year percentage increase/decrease)

13.0%
m Unemployment Rates
11.0%
9.0% Annual Job Growth Rates
7.0%
5.0% m Annual CPI Inflation
(o) .
3.0% = Median Home Sales Price
1.0% - Increase
-1.0% = Annual Change in Sales
Tax Receipts
-3.0%
-5.0%
-7.0%
-9.0%
-11.0%
-13.0%

Sources: State of California, Employment Development Department
Economic & Business Review, Chapman University, June 2020
California Association of Realtors

In summary, the economy in Orange County is forecasted to slow.

Long—=Term Financial Planning

Strategic Plan: In March 1997, the Board initiated a financial planning process that is a key component of the
County’s commitment to fiscal responsibility, accountability, and efficiency. The plan includes projections of County
general purpose revenues, departmental projections of operating costs, revenues, capital and information
technology needs for current programs and services and anticipated caseload changes. New programs, services
and capital projects are identified and prioritized on a Countywide basis with financial impacts identified over the plan
period. The plan covers a five-year period and includes a ten-year analysis of operating costs in cases where new
programs and facilities are assessed to ensure the ability to pay for long-term operational costs.

The 2020 Strategic Financial Plan (SFP) will be presented to the Board on January 26, 2021. The 2020 SFP is the
foundation in planning for continued financial stability and is augmented by the monitoring and establishment of
budgetary control via the budget reporting process and adoption of the Annual Budget. The five-year SFP
projections indicate that General Purpose Revenue will grow, on average, about 3.0% annually. The moderate
growth rate for revenue, coupled with the increasing cost of doing business, will require the County to carefully
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manage programs and service levels. The County continues to believe that sustained job growth and reduced
unemployment are the key indicators for economic growth.

In order to address identified budget issues and prepare for the continued uncertainty of the general and local
economy, the following represent some of the actions taken or identified as options for early planning. Early action is
critical to ensure baseline services are met and that the County continues to experience financial stability.

e The SFP reflects a 0% increase in Net County Cost allocations to departments for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22,
and 0% for each of the following fiscal years, with any remaining excess funds distributed and/or set-aside to
address the most critical strategic needs of the County

e Continuation of the policy to not backfill State budget reductions

¢ Internal financing program to support major capital and information technology projects

e Maintaining prudent levels of General Fund and Contingency Reserves

The County continues to move forward on several large projects identified below. In addition, the County is in
various stages of planning and implementing several other projects. Construction started for the Behavioral Health
Services campus site purchased in the city of Orange in March 2018 and the second phase of the Civic Center
Facilities Master Plan. Development of the County property at the former Marine Corps Air Station El Toro in Irvine
and other various County-owned properties such as the Greenspot and Prado Dam properties will require up-front
financial planning and investment in order to generate revenue in future years on a long-term basis.

Santa Ana River Mainstem Project: The Santa Ana River Mainstem Project (SARMP) was initiated in 1964, in partial
response to a resolution of the United States House Committee on Public Works adopted May 8, 1964. A survey
report was completed by the Orange County Flood Control District in 1975. The report was reviewed and submitted
to Congress in September 1978. In September 1980, the United States Corps of Engineers completed the General
Design Memorandum for the SARMP. Construction for the SARMP was authorized by the Water Resources
Development Act of 1986. Construction for the SARMP was initiated in 1989, and completion is scheduled for
December 2023 for the major components of the project.

The SARMP is designed to provide flood protection to the growing urban communities in Orange, Riverside and San
Bernardino Counties. The proposed improvements to the system cover 75 miles, from the headwater of the Santa
Ana River east of the city of San Bernardino to the mouth of the river at the Pacific Ocean between the cities of
Newport Beach and Huntington Beach. The project will increase levels of flood protection to more than 3.35 million
people within the three county areas. The project includes seven independent features: Seven Oaks Dam, Mill
Creek Levee, San Timoteo Creek, Oak Street Drain, Prado Dam, Santiago Creek and the Lower Santa Ana River.
More information on the SARMP is available in Note 15, Construction and Other Significant Commitments. To learn
more about the SARMP, visit the Orange County Flood Control Division's website at http://www.ocflood.com/sarp.

OC Dana Point Harbor Revitalization Plan: The OC Dana Point Harbor Revitalization Plan (Plan) includes
revitalization of Dana Point Harbor's commercial core, marinas, and hotel. The Plan is a multi-phased and long-term
public-private partnership project, where total development costs have been estimated in excess of $320,000. The
Plan is a phased and systematic long-term rehabilitation and/or replacement of the commercial core, hotel, and
waterside elements. County Executive Office Real Estate staff managed the process for selection of a private
partner for the project and worked with OC Parks staff to finalize the financial strategy for the complete Plan that will
meet the long-term needs and expectations of the community and the County. On October 17, 2017, the County
selected Dana Point Harbor Partners, LLC (DPHP) as the primary developer and Dana Point Partners, LLC as the
alternate developer for the lease, development, and management of certain portions of Dana Point Harbor. On July
17, 2018, the Board approved option and ground lease agreements with DPHP to administer and manage Dana
Point Harbor and initiate entitlement approvals for certain portions of Dana Point Harbor for the long-term use and
enjoyment by the public.

The County’s master lease with DPHP for the Harbor, including the Marina, Commercial Core and Hotel,
commenced on October 29, 2018. To date, DPHP has received entitlements for two of the three Harbor
components. In September 2020, the California Coastal Commission approved the Coastal Development Permit
(CDP) for the Marina improvements. The Commercial Core received its substantial conformance approval for its
CDP from the City of Dana Point in early 2020. Construction on the first phase of the Commercial Core is slated to
begin in December 2020 with the construction of the parking structure. The third and final component, the hotels, will
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require an amendment to the existing Local Coastal Plan as well as a CDP to allow for the two hotels proposed by
DPHP as part of their overall revitalization program. It is anticipated that the review and permitting process will not
be completed until at least 2022, with construction of the hotels commencing thereafter. Additional information on
these agreements can be found in Note 5, Service Concession Arrangements, in the Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements section.

James A. Musick Facility Expansion: On March 8, 2012, the County received a conditional award from the State for
$100,000 in funds for expansion of the James A. Musick Facility, Assembly Bill 900 (AB900 Phase Il). On March 8,
2013, the State approved the funding to complete design and construction for the project, of which establishment
allows the County to commit funding to design and construction that is reimbursed from the AB900 Phase II
$100,000 award. The County must front costs initially until the notice to proceed for construction is approved by the
State. At that time, all past eligible costs incurred can be invoiced for reimbursement by the State in full, and all
future costs will be invoiced for reimbursement by the State on an ongoing basis until construction completion and
occupancy. It is anticipated that costs will be reimbursed beginning in FY 2020-21.

On March 13, 2014, the State approved $80,000 in funds for the County for additional rehabilitation, treatment, and
housing for the James A. Musick Facility (Senate Bill 1022). This project will be completed in parallel with the AB900
Phase Il project. Because of schedule compaction during design, the State approved executing both project phases
into a single construction project. The financial requirements for this second phase are consistent with those
described above.

On May 5, 2020, the County awarded a construction contract to Bernards Bros., Inc. for the project in the amount of
$261,118 and also approved a five percent construction contingency amount of $13,056. The total project cost is
estimated to be $308,000 including all design, construction, project management and contingency costs. The cost is
funded by $180,000 from AB900 and SB 1022 State funding and $128,000 from the County’s General Fund.

This project started in June 2020, with an estimated completion in August 2022.

Central Utility Facility (CUF) Infrastructure Upgrade Project: The County CUF Project (Project) in the city of Santa
Ana, replaced the cooling tower, chillers and pumps, and added a boiler and related equipment at the CUF,
replaced the absorption chiller and steam line, and modified the steam system to accommodate the new
absorption chiller. The Project replaced the original 1968 CUF components which were beyond useful life and
required upgrades and replacement to be reliable and energy efficient. The Project also included expansion of the
present thermal utility distribution system to new thermal utility clients and improving the cogeneration system
efficiency and performance by using the full capacity of the cogeneration components. The total Project was
budgeted at $68,000 and was funded from CUF Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 issued in June 2016. As of
June 30, 2019, $67,800 of $68,000 bond proceeds were spent. The Project is complete and notice of completion
was submitted in August 2019.

Westminster Watershed Feasibility Study/East Garden Grove Wintersburg Channel: OC Public Works (OCPW)
completed work with the Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) to finalize the Westminster Watershed Feasibility
Study to reach the final milestone of Chief's Report issued on July 9, 2020. The Chief's Report is developed when
a water resources project requires Congressional authorization and is the final step in the feasibility process. After
having reached the Tentatively Selected Plan (TSP) milestone, which is the flood mitigation plan prepared by
USACE, OCPW began a Design-Build contract to construct reaches covered by the study while receiving Work-
In-Kind (WIK) credit towards Orange County Flood Control Districts (OCFCD) portion of the expected 65%
Federal and 35% Non-Federal cost share. Improvements to OCFCD facilities will benefit several cities including
Huntington Beach, Fountain Valley, Westminster, Garden Grove, Santa Ana and Seal Beach. As part of the
Study, USACE conducted public hearings and continues to incorporate refinements to cost analyses. The cost
estimates from the Study indicate that total construction cost is approximately $1,224,000 for the Project;
however, final analyses will provide a better estimate. Authorization is required by Congress through the Water
Resources Development Act of 2020. Appropriations would then be needed to establish funding for the Project.

Two projects for the East Garden Grove Wintersburg Channel are planned for construction by OCPW ahead of
the formal partnership agreement with USACE for the federal project. The reach from Warner Ave. to Goldenwest
St. is estimated to cost $78,700. A construction contract was awarded in June 2020 and the Notice to Proceed
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was issued in September 2020. The other reach spans from the Confluence with Oceanview Channel to Woodruff
and is estimated to cost $39,800 with construction expected to start in FY 2023-24.

Orange County Civic Center Facilities Master Plan: On April 23, 2013, the Board adopted an ordinance approving
a public-private partnership to develop the Civic Center Facilities Strategic Plan. On February 24, 2016, the Board
approved a Program Management and Design Agreement for Phase 1A planning and design of the Orange
County Civic Center Facilities.

Included in Phase | is a six-story, approximately 254,000 square foot building located at 601 N. Ross Street. On
April 25, 2017, the Board approved the Phase 1B, construction of the new Building 16, County Administration
South (CAS), within the Civic Center, the lease and leaseback of Building 16 property, and establishment of a
nonprofit corporation as it related to the financing of Building 16 and the Civic Center Facilities Strategic Plan.
Building 16 is occupied by several County departments and includes a one-stop shop public counter where the
public has access to services from multiple departments. There is also a 6,600-square-foot event/conference
center, Building 18, located at 425 W. Santa Ana Boulevard, which is used by the County and the public. In the
CAS Building, there are 350 underground parking spaces.

The project’s financing was facilitated through a Board adopted ordinance on May 9, 2017, identifying the legal
authority for the issuance of bonds, approving a Ground Lease, a Facility Lease, and forming the Capital Facilities
Development Corporation (Corporation). On June 22, 2017, the California Municipal Finance Authority (CMFA)
issued $152,400 Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A. Pursuant to a loan agreement, the CMFA loaned a total
of $175,340 to the Corporation for the construction. Upon filing the certificate of substantial completion, the
County commenced base rental payments, under the Facility Lease, to repay the loan to the CMFA, which pays
debt service to the bondholders. The CAS Project was completed, notice of completion was received and
accepted by the Corporation, and the CAS Building was fully occupied by the County in November 2019.

On June 26, 2018, the Board approved a Program Management and Design Agreement for Phase 2A planning
and design of a new Building 14, County Administration North (CAN), within the Civic Center, which will be a twin
building of the above CAS Building, a six-story, approximately 254,000 square foot, 332 underground parking
spaces and additional 196 surface parking spaces. CAN will be occupied by several County departments and
includes a Board of Supervisor Board Hearing room.

The project’s financing was facilitated through a Board adopted ordinance on September 25, 2018, identifying the
legal authority for the issuance of bonds, approving a Ground Lease, a Facility Lease, and using the Corporation.
In December 2018, the CMFA issued $185,705 Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A. The CMFA loaned a total
of $212,304 to the Corporation, pursuant to a loan agreement, for the construction. Upon filing the certificate of
substantial completion, the County will commence base rental payments, under the Facility Lease, to repay the
loan to the CMFA, which pays debt service to the bondholders. The CAN Project started in October 2019 with
environmental assessment and demolition efforts for the existing buildings and the new building construction is
estimated to be completed in July 2022.

Be Well OC Behavioral Health Services Campus-Mind OC: On December 5, 2017, the Board approved the
purchase of the office building located at 265 S. Anita Dr., in the city of Orange, for use as a centralized campus for
behavioral health services in the County. On January 29, 2019, the Board committed $16,600 to establish the
County’s first Be Well Orange County Regional Mental Health and Wellness Campus. This was a transformative
initiative that brought together public, private, academic and faith-based organizations to create a coordinated
system of mental health care and support for all County residents regardless of their ability to pay. The County’s
share of costs are funded from the Health Care Agency’'s Behavioral Health programs. Additional funding was
received from the CalOptima Board in the form of an $11,400 advance payment to assist in the design and
construction of the OC Regional Wellness Hub. This was included in the June 11, 2019, Board approval of the
amendment to the agreement with Mind OC to increase advance funding to $28,000 for the design and construction
of the OC Regional Wellness Hub.

The project construction started in October 2019 and is estimated for completion in December 2020. The overall
cost of financing the design and construction is approximately $40,000 and is distributed among the County,
CalOptima, and OC hospitals including Hoag, Providence St. Joseph Health, and Kaiser Permanente. The hospitals’
commitment of $12,000 is shared equally between the three hospitals. CalOptima’s $11,400 advance payment will
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be used to offset service costs provided to CalOptima clients at the Be Well OC Behavioral Health Services
Campus. The construction cost for this project will be recorded as progress is made with full cost reconciled at the
completion of the project.

Relevant Financial Policies

To achieve the goal of providing outstanding and cost-effective regional public services, the County applies sound
management practices and policies that enhance the quality of life of its citizens. Such financial management
practices have been identified by the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and
Canada and recognized by Fitch Ratings as best practices that promote financial soundness, efficiency in
government, and solvency in public finance.

General Fund Reserves Policy

The County General Fund Reserves Policy provides guidance in the creation, maintenance and use of reserves.
The policy covers formal and informal reserves, and includes provisions for reserves such as appropriations for
contingencies, reserve-like appropriations, and reserve-like funds held by others such as the OCERS Investment
Account. The policy also recognizes whether funds are legally required or discretionary or have special restrictions.
The reserves policy is maintained and updated, as needed, through the County’s annual SFP process. The reserves
policy targets and balances are included in the annual SFP document.

The General Fund Reserves policy is designed to provide flexibility to the County as well as the following:

Resources to address unanticipated or cyclical economic conditions

Resources for emergencies and/or catastrophic events

Mitigation of the volatility of revenues and expenditures in managing temporary cash flow shortages
Capacity to cover unexpected large one-time expenses and opportunities

Capacity to fund capital investments

Capacity to minimize borrowing costs

Capacity to provide some level of protection against statutory changes to County revenues and impacts
from federal and state actions

The County has a variety of reserve funds available to both the General Fund and Non-General Funds including:

Fund Balance Assigned for Contingencies

Fund Balance Assigned for Operations

Fund Balance Assigned for Construction and Maintenance
Fund Balance Assigned for Capital Projects

Fund Balance Assigned for Teeter Loss Reserve

Fund Balance Assigned for Reserve Target

Reserve-Like Funds

Reserve-Like Appropriations

Department-Type Reserves

All of the previously mentioned are reserves normally modified at the time of budget adoption (Government Code
Section 29085) or at fiscal year-end. Changes to reserve amounts at other times require a 4/5 vote of the Board. A
4/5 vote is also required to make such reserves available for appropriation to expend the funds, if needed, during the
fiscal year (Government Code Section 29130).

Reserve Targets and Descriptions

Under GFOA recommended practice, the County establishes an overall reserve target and allocates the calculated
target among the classes of obligated fund balances as appropriate. The County may fund more or less to each
reserve class for a variety of reasons, such as its current financial condition, the need to set aside for particular goals
or directives, the need to bridge one-time gaps, etc. The goal is to ensure a prudent reserve balance that is
maintained and replenished on a regular basis. In implementing the GFOA'’s best practice, the County elected to
establish a funding target based upon two months of General Fund operating revenues.
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Contingencies

The purpose and use of this reserve is to cover unanticipated and severe economic downturns, major emergencies,
or catastrophes that cannot be covered with existing appropriations. In particular, continued drought conditions with
the attendant risk of wildfires, highlights the potential for catastrophic events within the County. A significant event
could create the need for a higher funding level of this reserve. The target amount for this reserve is 15% of ongoing
annual General Purpose Revenues (excluding fund balance unassigned and one-time amounts and transfers).

The following table summarizes the County’s financial management practices:

Relevant Financial Policies

Multi-Year SFP The County’s SFP is based on a five-year financial forecast and includes a 10-year analysis
of operating costs in cases where new programs and facilities are recommended to ensure
the ability to pay for long-term operational costs. Performance measures and strategies are
key elements of the SFP process.

Five-Year Capital The County’s five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a long-term list of significant
Improvement Plan projects funded by the General Fund in the Capital Projects budget. It also includes the five-
year capital program for Non-General Fund agencies. The CIP aids the County in its
assessment of the best use of funds available in order to establish and prioritize its capital
asset goals, while maintaining long-term financial stability.

Gl IERCINEETIRI ) The five-year Information Technology Plan (ITP) is a compilation of significant IT projects
Projects including upgrades or replacements of existing systems, greater or equal to $150 and less
than $1,000 in any one fiscal year of the five years in the plan. Costs for ongoing system
support and maintenance are included. The ITP is a tool used by the County to assess IT
projects, leverage overlap, and prioritize the use of County General Funds available to IT
projects.

The County Executive Office issues quarterly budget reports that provide the Board, County.
departments, members of the public, and other interested parties with an overview of the
current status of budgeted revenues and expenditures, total budgeted positions and various
departmental issues requiring adjustments to the County’s budget.

Annual Budget Policies The Annual Budget reflects the County’s disciplined approach to fiscal management and is
and Guidelines consistent with the County’'s SFP process. Department budgets are consistent with the
priorities and operations plans contained in the SFP. Departments use these planning
processes, along with outcome indicators, to evaluate programs and redirect existing
resources as needed for greater efficiency to reduce costs and minimize the need for
additional resources.

Fund Balance Reserve The County General Fund currently contains formal and informal reserves, appropriations
Policy for contingencies, appropriated reserve-type funds, and reserves held by others. The
purpose of these reserves is to protect community programs and services from temporary
revenue shortfalls and provide for unpredicted, sudden and unavoidable one-time
expenditures.

Contingency Planning The County’s General Fund maintains a reserve for contingencies, which was established
Policy through the SFP process. The target amount for this reserve is 15% of ongoing annual
General Purpose Revenues (excludes fund balance unassigned and one-time amounts and
transfers), or $130,830. This compares to the GFOA guidelines for funding contingencies at
15% or higher. The November 30, 2020 balance is $35,219, approximately $95,611 below
the target.

In addition to the reserve for contingencies, the County budgets an annual appropriation for
significant unanticipated emergencies, catastrophes, one-time expenditures and
opportunities of no less than $5,000 in the General Fund.
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Relevant Financial Policies (Continued)

Debt Disclosure The County presents a set of debt disclosures in the County’s adopted Budget document
Practices and the CAFR, as well as Continuing Disclosure Annual Reports on its website and the
Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) repository.

Pay-as—you-go Capital The County’s long-term practice has been to use pay-as-you-go funding for capital
Funding projects whenever possible. The use of systematic long range financial planning assists
in making fiscal decisions such as debt vs. pay-as-you-go capital project financing. The
SFP forecasts sources of the County’s revenue and operating expenses and
incorporates a list of previously identified and prioritized projects that will benefit the
citizens of the County. The financial planning for capital projects considers the County’s
limited funding sources, the capital and operating costs, useful life of projects, and good
business practices.

Credit and Debt The County’s long-term practice has been to rapidly repay debt when practicable. The
Management Policy Policy is intended to maintain long-term financial stability by ensuring that its long-term
financing commitments are affordable and do not create undue risk or burden, achieve
and maintain high credit ratings, minimize debt service interest expense and issuance
costs, provide accurate and timely financial disclosure and reporting, and comply with
applicable State and Federal laws and financing covenants.

Public Financing The Public Financing Advisory Committee (PFAC) is responsible for the review,
Advisory Committee approval, and modification or denial of debt financing proposals. No County debt
financing proposal is considered by the Board unless recommended in writing by the
PFAC. The PFAC membership consists of the following: five public voting members,
each representing a district, and three Ex-Officio County government members (the
County Executive Officer, the elected Treasurer-Tax Collector, and the elected Auditor-
Controller) (non-voting).

Audit Oversight The Audit Oversight Committee (AOC) is an advisory committee to the Board that
Committee provides oversight of the activities of the County’s Internal Audit Department, and the
County’s external audit coverage including financial reporting and federal and state audit
activities. The AOC membership includes the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board, the
County Executive Officer, the elected Treasurer-Tax Collector (non-voting), the elected
Auditor-Controller (non-voting), and five private sector members appointed by the Board.
The private sector members are appointed by the Board for a term of four years and
may be reappointed or removed by the Board.

Treasury Oversight The Treasury Oversight Committee (TOC) is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
Committee annual Investment Policy Statement (IPS). In addition, the TOC causes an annual audit
of the County’s compliance with the IPS. The TOC shall also investigate any and all
irregularities in the treasury operations, which become known to the TOC. The TOC has
an approved policy to investigate and report such irregularities.

Annually, the TOC reviews the IPS, including all proposed changes to the IPS. The
elected Treasurer-Tax Collector then submits the IPS to the Board for approval, including
any changes thereto. The TOC membership consists of the following: The elected Auditor;
Controller, the County Executive Officer, the elected County Superintendent of Schools,
or their respective designees, and four public members. The public members shall be
nominated by the elected Treasurer-Tax Collector and confirmed by the Board.

24/7 Fraud Hotline The Fraud Hotline is part of an ongoing fraud detection and prevention effort. The Fraud
Hotline is intended for use by County employees, the general public, or vendors for
reporting suspected waste, fraud, violations of County policy or misuse of County
resources by vendors, contractors or County employees.
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Major Initiatives

Funding Equity: The County hovers at the bottom of funding for counties statewide, receiving the lowest percentage
of property taxes in California to support services-about 5 cents on the dollar; the state average is 14 cents. The
formula for returning local property taxes to the counties where they were collected was set in 1978 and has not
been updated since. This systematically disadvantages the County’s ability to provide services to its diverse
population.

The County’s predicament does not have easy fixes. Shifting funding formulas could affect other counties receiving
more of their share of taxes, as well as other taxing entities such as cities, special districts, and schools, which have
constitutional protections for state funding. Therefore, the answer to assuring funding equity for the County lies in
increasing funding, programs, and partnerships that specifically benefit County programs and services. When the
state shifts or adds responsibilities at the county level, the County will seek enough funding for those programs to
ensure their success. The County’s robust legislative agenda seeks creative and substantive ways to assure our
residents are provided with their fair share of the taxes they pay to support the programs and services they deserve.

Labor Agreements: Most County employees are represented by one of 21 bargaining units, which are separated into
eight labor organizations. The principal organization is the Orange County Employees Association (OCEA), which
represents six bargaining units totaling about 9,603 permanent filled employee positions. The next largest unions are
the Association of County Deputy Sheriffs, which represents four bargaining units totaling about 2,702 members and
the American Federation of State and Municipal Employees at about 1,438 members. All contracts have been
successfully negotiated and County employees continue to work under their contract terms and conditions of
employment.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

GFOA Awards: The GFOA awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the
County for its CAFR for the year ended June 30, 2019; this represents the County’s 25" consecutive award. The
Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition for excellence in state and local government financial
reporting.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized CAFR, whose contents conform to program standards. Such a CAFR must satisfy both GAAP
and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe
our current report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it
to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the County issued its 17t consecutive Popular Annual Financial Report (PAFR) titled the “OC Citizens’
Report” for the year ended June 30, 2019. The County received the GFOA Award for Outstanding Achievement in
Popular Annual Financial Reporting for this PAFR. The award is a prestigious national award recognizing
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government popular reports. In order to
be awarded, a government must publish a PAFR that reflects the program standards of creativity, presentation,
understandability, and reader appeal. The “OC Citizens’ Report” is available for viewing at www.ac.ocgov.com.

Distinguished Budget Presentation Award: The GFOA awarded a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award to the
County for its FY 2019-20 Annual Budget; this is the County’s fourth award. The award is the highest form of
recognition in governmental budgeting. In order to receive the award, the entity had to satisfy nationally recognized
guidelines for effective budget presentation. These guidelines are designed to acknowledge how well an entity’s
budget serves as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications device.

Counties Financial Transactions Reporting Award: The County received the Financial Transactions Reporting
Award from the State Controller’s Office for its Year-End Financial Transaction Report for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2019. The award is in recognition of the professionalism demonstrated by Counties in preparing accurate and
timely financial reports and for those counties that meet the review criteria of the award program.
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Acknowledgments: We would like to express our sincere appreciation to County staff and the staff of the certified
public accounting firm of Eide Bailly LLP. We hope this report will be of interest and use to those in county

government, other governmental agencies, and the public interested in the financial activities of the County of
Orange.

Respectfully submitted,

W 2% Cl(jﬂ@xd

Frank Davies, CPA Michelle Aguirre
Auditor-Controller Chief Financial Officer
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EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Supervisors
County of Orange, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the County of Orange, California (County) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Orange County Health Authority, a Public Agency/dba Orange Prevention and
Treatment Integrated Medical Assistance (CalOptima) which represent 97 percent, 96 percent, and 99 percent,
respectively, of the assets, net position, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units.
Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar
as it relates to the amounts included for CalOptima, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County, as of June 30,
2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the General fund, Flood Control District fund, Other Public Protection fund, and Mental
Health Services Act fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, and the schedules for the Orange County Employees Retirement System (OCERS) plan,
Orange County Extra-Help Defined Benefit plan, and the Orange County Retiree Medical plan, as listed in the table
of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County’s financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit

of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 22, 2020, on
our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

@M LLFP

Laguna Hills, California
December 22, 2020
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County of Orange
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

This section of the County’s CAFR provides a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County
for the year ended June 30, 2020. We hope that the information presented here, in conjunction with the Letter of
Transmittal, provides a clear picture of the County’s overall financial status. Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)

(UNAUDITED)

in this section are expressed in thousands of dollars.

EINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total change in net position, which is the difference between total revenues (including transfers in) and
expenses (including transfers out), was $317,280 for the fiscal year, and it increased net position by 13% from

prior year.

Long-term debt obligations decreased by $14,240 or 2% during the current fiscal year.

The County’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $2,692,077, an increase of

$40,056 or 2% in comparison with the prior year.
General Fund revenues and other financing sources ended the year 16% below budget.
General Fund expenditures and other financing uses ended the year 16% below budget.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements presented in the County’s CAFR are divided into three different sections:

Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements
Fund Financial Statements
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide

Financial
Statements

Statement of
Net Position

Statement of
Activities

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds
Balance Statement of
Sheet Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Expenses, and Changes in
Changes in Fund Balances Fund Net Position

Budgetary Comparison

Statement of Cash Flows
Statements

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of
Fiduciary
Net Position

Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary
Net Position
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The following table summarizes the major features of the basic financial statements:

Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide

Financial
Statements

Statement of
Net Position

Type of Financial
Statement

Statement of
Activities

Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet

Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund
Balances

Budgetary Comparison
Statements

Proprietary Funds

Statement of
Net Position

Statement of Revenues,

Expenses, and Changes
in Fund Net Position

Statement of Cash Flows

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary
Net Position

Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Position

Entire entity (except
fiduciary funds)

Day-to-day operating
activities for basic
services

Day-to-day operating
activities for business-
type services

Resources on behalf of
others

Accounting Basis
and Measurement
Focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources
measurement focus

Modified accrual
accounting and
current financial
resources
measurement focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources
measurement focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources
measurement focus
(except for agency funds)

All assets, deferred
outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources, both
financial and capital, short-
term and long-term

Type of Asset,
Deferred Outflows
of Resources,
Liability, and
Deferred Inflows of
Resources
Information

Current assets, liabilities,
and deferred inflows of
resources that come due
during the year or soon
thereafter

All assets, deferred
outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources both
financial and capital, short
term and long-term

All assets, deferred
outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources held
in a trustee or agency
capacity for others

All revenues and
expenses during the year,
regardless of when cash
is received or paid

Type of Inflows
and Outflows
Information

Revenues for which cash
is received during the
year or soon thereafter;
expenditures for when
goods or services have
been received, and the
related liability is due and
payable

All revenues and
expenses during the year,
regardless of when cash
is received or paid

All additions and
deductions during the
year, regardless of when
cash is received or paid
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Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements consist of the following two financial statements: the Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities. Both of these statements were prepared using an accounting method and a
measurement focus similar to those used by private-sector companies, the accrual basis of accounting and the
economic resources measurement focus. The Statement of Net Position provides information regarding all of the
County’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources with the difference
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating. The Statement of Activities, on the other
hand, provides information on how the government’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year
regardless of the period when the related cash or cash equivalent is received or paid. Therefore, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (for
example, uncollected taxes, and earned but unused vacation leave).

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities distinguish functions of the County that are principally
supported by taxes (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the
County include (1) general government, (2) public protection, (3) public ways and facilities, (4) health and sanitation,
(5) public assistance, (6) education, and (7) recreation and cultural services. The business-type activities of the
County include John Wayne Airport (Airport), OC Waste & Recycling, and Compressed Natural Gas (CNG).

The government-wide financial statements also provide information regarding the County’s component units, entities
for which the County (the primary government) is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component
units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the County’s operations; therefore, data from these
component units are combined with data of the primary government. Financial information for the CFCOC and
CalOptima, discretely presented component units, are reported separately from the financial information presented
for the primary government itself. Separate stand-alone annual financial reports can be obtained by accessing the
County’s website at the following address: www.ac.ocgov.com. A separate stand-alone CalOptima annual financial
report can be obtained by accessing the website at http://wpso.dmhc.ca.gov/fe/search/.

Fund Financial Statements

. : The fund financial statements report on groupings of related funds
e Fund - a separate accounting entity | hat are used to maintain control over resources that have been

with a self-balancing set of segregated for specific activities or objectives. A fund is a separate
accounts. accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Like other
state and local governments, the County uses fund accounting to

e Focusis on major funds. ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. The focus of governmental and proprietary fund

e Provides information regarding the financial statements is on major funds as determined by the criteria
three major categories of all County set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
funds: governmental, proprietary, Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
and fiduciary. Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments,” and

GASB Statement No. 65, “ftems Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities.”  All of the County funds can be divided into three major
categories of funds: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds include most of the County’s basic services and are used to account
for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental funds financial statements are prepared
using the modified accrual basis of accounting and current financial resources measurement focus.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Reconciliations are prepared for the
governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances to facilitate comparisons between governmental funds and governmental activities. The primary
differences between the government-wide and fund financial statements relate to noncurrent assets, such
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as land and structures and improvements, and noncurrent liabilities, such as bonded debt and amounts owed for
compensated absences, capital lease obligations, net pension liability and other postemployment benefits (OPEB),
which are reported in the government-wide statements but not in the fund financial statements.

The County maintains several individual governmental funds organized according to their type (General Fund,
Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects and Permanent funds). Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
for the General Fund, which is always a major fund, and all other major funds which may change each year
depending on if they meet the major funds criteria. Information for nonmajor funds is presented in the aggregate as
“Other Governmental Funds” in these statements. Individual fund data for each of the nonmajor governmental funds
is presented in the Supplemental Information Section of this CAFR. The County adopts an annual appropriated
budget for its governmental funds. Budgetary comparison statements and schedules have been provided for these
funds to demonstrate compliance with the budget and are presented in the Basic Financial Statements and
Supplemental Information Section of this CAFR, respectively.

Proprietary Funds - The County maintains two different types of proprietary funds: Enterprise funds and Internal
Service funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its Airport, OC Waste &
Recycling, and CNG activities. Internal Service funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among
the County’s various functions such as insurance, transportation, publishing services, and information technology.
Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, Internal Service
funds have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Airport
and OC Waste & Recycling operations, which are both considered to be major funds of the County. Conversely, the
Internal Service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial
statements with the individual fund data provided in the combining statements, which can be found in the
Supplemental Information Section of this CAFR.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds include the Trust and Agency funds and are used to account for assets held on
behalf of outside parties, including other governments. Financial information for fiduciary funds is not reported in the
government-wide financial statements because the resources of these funds are not available to support the
County’s programs. The combining statements for fiduciary funds are included in the Supplemental Information
Section of this CAFR.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. To find a specific note, refer to the Table of
Contents.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator
of the County’s financial position. At June 30, 2020, the County’s
combined net position (governmental and business-type activities)
totaled $2,844,388, an increase of 13% from FY 2018-19.

COMPONENTS OF NET POSITION

e Net Investment in Capital Assets
The largest component of the County’s net position, which totals
$4,175,423 was net investment in capital assets, which represents | ® Restricted
the County’s investment in capital assets, less any related outstanding
debt used to acquire those assets and debt-related deferred outflows
and inflows of resources. The County’s capital assets are used to
provide needed services to its citizens. Since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate the associated debt, the
resources needed to repay the debt must be provided from other sources.

Unrestricted
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The County’s restricted net position of $1,602,769 represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on
their use and are available to meet the County’s ongoing obligations for programs with external restrictions. External
restrictions include those imposed by grantors, contributors, laws/regulations of other governments, or restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or legislation, including those passed by the County itself.

The unrestricted net position is the final component of net position. Unrestricted net position is resources that the
County may use to meet its ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. As of June 30, 2020, the County’s
unrestricted net position totals a deficit of $2,933,804. Among governmental activities the deficit was $3,480,608 in
unrestricted net position, compared to its deficit of $3,582,580 at June 30, 2019. The main contributor of the deficit
continues to be the reporting of the County’s proportionate share of net pension and OPEB liability on the financial
statements.

The following table presents condensed financial information derived from the government-wide Statement of Net
Position:

NET POSITION - Primary Government
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

ASSETS
Current and Other Assets $ 4373638 $ 3,875,987 $ 976,845 $ 897,628 $ 5,350,483 $ 4,773,615
Capital Assets 3,426,770 3,243,628 946,913 949,383 4,373,683 4,193,011

Total Assets 7,800,408 7,119,615 1,923,758 1,847,011 9,724,166 8,966,626
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 874,422 1,363,252 19,453 30,374 893,875 1,393,626

Total Assets/Deferred Outflows of Resources 8,674,830 8,482,867 1,943,211 1,877,385 10,618,041 10,360,252
LIABILITIES
Long-term Liabilities 5,296,601 6,143,569 392,806 410,108 5,689,407 6,553,677
Other Liabilities 1,278,107 783,794 76,679 64,616 1,354,786 848,410

Total Liabilities 6,574,708 6,927,363 469,485 474,724 7,044,193 7,402,087
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 717,070 423,123 12,390 7,934 729,460 431,057

Total Liabilities/Deferred Inflows of Resources 7,291,778 7,350,486 481,875 482,658 7,773,653 7,833,144
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,319,173 3,127,371 856,250 858,924 4,175,423 3,986,295
Restricted 1,544,487 1,587,590 58,282 44,444 1,602,769 1,632,034
Unrestricted (3,480,608) (3,582,580) 546,804 491,359 (2,933,804) (3,091,221)

Total Net Position $ 1,383,052 $ 1,132,381 $ 1,461,336 $ 1,394,727 $ 2,844,388 $ 2,527,108

As of June 30, 2020, the County’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources increased by 2% or $257,789
during the current fiscal year. Capital assets increased by $180,672, primarily due to construction projects related to
Civic Center Facilities Master Plan, and road donations accepted to the County Road System. In addition, there was
an increase of $576,868 in current and other assets, which is primarily attributable to an overall increase in cash and
cash equivalents as a result of federal assistance received from the Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) established to
assist governments to cover expenditures related to the COVID-19 public health emergency, higher tax
apportionments and interest revenue received. Deferred outflows of resources decreased by $499,751, primarily
due to a decrease in deferred outflows related to pension as a result of an investment gain, which reflects the
changes in net pension liability measurements as required by GASB Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions—An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27,” (GASB Statement No. 68) and employer
pension contributions made after the measurement date as required by GASB Statement No. 71, “Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date—An Amendment of GASB Statement No.
68" (GASB Statement No. 71).

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources for FY 2019-20 decreased by 1% or $59,491. Long-term liabilities
decreased by 13% or $864,270, mainly due to a decrease in the County’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability as a result of an investment gain, offset by an increase in the Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds 2020,
Series A issuance. Other liabilities increased by 60% or $506,376, primarily due to an increase in unearned revenue
as a result of federal assistance received from the CRF. Deferred inflows of resources increased by 69% or
$298,403, mainly due to the changes in the net pension liability calculated as required by GASB Statement No. 68.
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The following table provides summarized data of the government-wide Statement of Activities:

CHANGES IN NET POSITION - Primary Government
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
REVENUES
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 605,376 $ 627,026 $ 314,910 $ 329,634 $ 920,286 $ 956,660
Operating Grants and Contributions 2,500,368 2,289,265 5,285 193 2,505,653 2,289,458
Capital Grants and Contributions 141,118 63,429 -- 1,424 141,118 64,853
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 595,114 570,638 - - 595,114 570,638
Property Taxes in Lieu of
Motor Vehicle License Fees 418,370 395,809 -- - 418,370 395,809
Other Taxes 104,863 99,965 50 10 104,913 99,975
Grants and Contributions not Restricted
to Specific Programs 11,673 2,720 -- -- 11,673 2,720
State Allocation of Motor
Vehicle License Fees 838 1,180 -- -- 838 1,180
Other General Revenues 84,169 96,983 19,858 25,115 104,027 122,098
Total Revenues 4,461,889 4,147,015 340,103 356,376 4,801,992 4,503,391
EXPENSES
General Government 313,583 221,830 - - 313,583 221,830
Public Protection 1,571,137 1,650,165 -- - 1,571,137 1,650,165
Public Ways and Facilities 158,356 172,970 - - 158,356 172,970
Health and Sanitation 752,996 715,343 -- -- 752,996 715,343
Public Assistance 1,219,816 1,193,705 -- -- 1,219,816 1,193,705
Education 48,845 52,323 -- - 48,845 52,323
Recreation and Cultural Services 122,694 139,183 -- -- 122,694 139,183
Interest on Long-Term Debt 33,617 30,910 - - 33,617 30,910
Airport - - 132,804 136,075 132,804 136,075
OC Waste & Recycling - - 130,853 128,354 130,853 128,354
Compressed Natural Gas - - 11 160 11 160
Total Expenses 4,221,044 4,176,429 263,668 264,589 4,484,712 4,441,018
Excess before Transfers 240,845 (29,414) 76,435 91,787 317,280 62,373
Transfers 9,826 8,922 (9,826) (8,922) - -
Change in Net Position 250,671 (20,492) 66,609 82,865 317,280 62,373
Net Position-Beginning of the Year 1,132,381 1,152,873 1,394,727 1,311,862 2,527,108 2,464,735
Net Position-End of the Year $ 1,383,052 $ 1132381 $ 1,461,336 $ 1,394,727 $ 2,844,388 $ 2,527,108
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The County’s net position increased by $317,280 during the current fiscal year. Revenues for the year totaled
$4,801,992, an increase of $298,601 from prior year’s total revenues. Expenses totaled $4,484,712, an increase of
$43,694 from the previous year’s total expenses.

Governmental Activities

The County’s governmental activities rely on several sources of revenue to finance ongoing operations. Operating
grants and contributions comprised the largest revenue source for the County, followed by charges for services.
Operating grants and contributions are monies received from parties outside the County and are generally restricted
to one or more specific programs such as State and Federal revenues for public assistance and for health care.
Charges for services are revenues that arise from charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from the goods, services, or privileges provided. Examples of the types of services that fall under this
category include engineering services provided to cities under contract, park and recreation fees, and law
enforcement services provided to other governmental agencies under contract.

At the end of FY 2019-20, total revenues for governmental activities, including transfers from the business-type
activities were $4,471,715, an increase of $315,778 from the previous year. Expenses totaled $4,221,044, an
increase of $44,615 from the prior year. During the current fiscal year, net position for governmental activities
increased by $250,671 from the prior fiscal year for an ending balance of $1,383,052. Key elements of the increase
are as follows:

Revenues

e Operating grants and contributions increased by $211,103, primarily due to federal assistance received from the
CRF that covered expenditures related to the COVID-19 public health emergency. This increase was also due
to higher claim payments received for the CalWorks and CalFresh programs, and timing of claiming and
payments for the Child Welfare Services, Adult Protective Services, and In-Home Supportive Services
programs.

e Capital grants and contributions increased by $77,689, due to an increase in revenues related to roads donated
from the construction companies to the County Road System. Offsetting this increase was a decrease in
revenues related to Ortega Highway Widening Improvement Project.

Expenses

e Expenses in general government increased by $91,753, primarily due to CRF funds distributed to cities for
establishing business recovery grant programs and for covering COVID-19 related costs, as well as,
contributions to other entities in relation to the design and construction of the OC Regional Wellness Hub.

e Expenses in public protection decreased by $79,028, mainly due to a decrease in salaries and employee
benefits (S&EB), pension costs and a decrease in services and supplies (S&S) primarily in the Sheriff-Coroner
Department.

e Expenses in health and sanitation increased by $37,653, primarily due to increases in professional services and
medical supplies related to COVID-19. Partially offsetting this increase was a decrease in pension costs.
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The following chart presents a comparison of expenses by function and the associated program revenues for
governmental activities:

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities
M Expenses

General Government W Program Revenues

Public Protection

Public Ways & Facilities
Health & Sanitation

Public Assistance

Education

Recreation & Cultural Services
Interest on Long-Term Debt

S0 $200,000 $400,000 $600,000 $800,000 $1,000,000 $1,200,000 $1,400,000 $1,600,000 $1,800,000

The chart below presents the percentage of total revenues by source for governmental activities:

® Operating Grants and Contributions (55.9%)

M Charges for Services (13.6%)

i Property Taxes (13.3%)

i Property Taxes in Lieu of Motor Vehicle License
Fees (9.4%)

i Other General Revenues (1.9%)

M Other Taxes (2.4%)

I Capital Grants and Contributions (3.2%)

E Grants and Contributions not Restricted to
Specific Programs (0.3%)
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Business-Type Activities

The County has three business-type activities: Airport, OC Waste & Recycling, and Compressed Natural Gas. In
keeping with the intent of recovering all or a significant portion of their cost through user fees and charges, business-
type activities reported charges for services as their largest source of revenues.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-Type Activities = Expenses

Program Revenues

Airport h
OC Waste &
Recycling
S0 $50,000 $100,000 $150,000 $200,000

At the end of FY 2019-20, the business-type activities’ total revenues exceeded expenses and transfers resulting in
an increase of $66,609 in net position compared to the prior year's increase in net position of $82,865. Revenues
totaled $340,103 a decrease of $16,273 from the previous fiscal year, which is primarily attributable to decreases in
revenue from the Airport’s auto parking fees, concessions, landing fees, interest income, Passenger Facility Charge
(PFC) revenue, and capital grant contributions, partially offset by OC Waste & Recycling’s increase in importation
disposal revenue and in-county disposal revenue.

Expenses, including transfers to governmental activities, totaled $273,494, representing a decrease of $17 from the
previous year. This decrease is primarily due to the Airport’s decrease in interest expense, due to the prior year
payoff of the Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 2009, as well as decreases for OC Waste and Recycling’s closure and
postclosure care costs, and taxes and other fees. Partially offsetting this decrease was an increase in OC Waste
and Recycling's S&S and professional and specialized services. Other factors concerning the finances of the
County’s two major enterprise funds are discussed in the Proprietary Funds section of the “Financial Analysis of the
County’s Funds.”

The following chart displays expenses and the associated program revenues by function for the business-type
activities (major enterprise funds):

Revenue by Source - Business-Type Activities

ul Charges for Services (92.6%)

g @ Other General Revenues (5.8%)

il Operating Grants and
Contributions (1.6%)
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS

The County uses fund accounting to demonstrate legal compliance and aid financial management by segregating
transactions related to certain government functions or activities.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only current assets, current liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources related to unavailable
revenue generally are included on the balance sheet, with the difference reported as fund balance. Fund balance,
excluding nonspendable and restricted fund balances, may serve as a valuable measure of the government’s available
financial resources for spending at the end of a fiscal year. This amount is available for spending at the discretion of
the Board in order to achieve the established function of the respective funds.

At June 30, 2020, the County’s governmental funds reported total fund balances of $2,692,077, which is an increase of
$40,056 in comparison with prior year ending fund balances.

Comparative Analysis of Changes in Fund Balances

The following schedule presents a summary of revenues and other financing sources, expenditures and other financing
uses, and the net change in fund balances for the governmental funds for the current and previous fiscal year:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCES
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Revenues and Other Expenditures and Other Net Change in
Financing Sources Financing Uses Fund Balances
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
General Fund $ 3,767,361 $ 3,382,454 $ 3,694,792 $ 3,400,499 $ 72,569 $ (18,045)
Flood Control District 174,694 194,368 144,155 146,280 30,539 48,088
Other Public Protection 65,384 62,121 48,816 52,662 16,568 9,459
Mental Health Services Act 147,928 168,334 231,783 200,386 (83,855) (32,052)
Other Governmental Funds 906,417 1,204,481 902,182 1,059,415 4,235 145,066
Total $ 5,061,784 $ 5011,758 $ 5,021,728 $ 4,859,242 $ 40,056 $ 152,516

In addition to the effects of expenditure-driven grants, the following information provides explanations for the
significant changes in fund balance:

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of FY 2019-20, revenues and other financing
sources were more than the expenditures and other financing uses resulting in an increase in fund balance of $72,569
compared to last year's decrease of $18,045. Revenues and other financing sources increased by $384,907 and
expenditures and other financing uses increased by $294,293. The following is a brief summary of the primary factors
that contributed to the increase in the net change in fund balance for the General Fund in FY 2019-20:

Revenues

e Intergovernmental revenues increased by $282,986, mainly due to federal assistance received from the CRF
that covered expenditures related to the COVID-19 public health emergency. The increase was also due to
funding received for the Whole Person Care Program, higher claim payments received for the CalWorks and
CalFresh programs, and timing of claiming and payments for the Child Welfare Services, Adult Protective
Services, and In-Home Supportive Services programs.

e Transfers to the General Fund increased by $62,722 due to an increase in Prop 63 drawdowns from the Mental
Health Services Act (MHSA), an increase in drawdowns from the Health Care Agency (HCA) purpose restricted
revenue fund for eligible expenditures under the Homeless Emergency Aid Program, and an increase in
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transfers to fund multi-year capital projects such as the Be Well OC Hub, Civic Center Facility Master Plan, and
the Yale Transitional Center.

Expenditures

e Transfers from the General Fund increased by $73,732 for the development of permanent supportive housing
and to the Countywide Capital Projects Non-General Fund for renovation and construction related to the Be Well
OC Hub, Yale Transitional Center, and OC Animal Shelter.

e Expenditures for the general government increased by $70,057, which was primarily attributable to CRF funds
distributed to cities for establishing business recovery grant programs and for covering COVID-19 related costs.
Additionally, there was an increase in taxes and other fees for expenses related to the Be Well OC Hub. Partially
offsetting the increase was a decrease in judgements and damages as the final Vehicle License Fee Adjustment
settlement agreement payment to the State was made in June 2019.

e Expenditures for health and sanitation increased by $67,822, primarily as a result of ongoing operational cost
increases in HCA for professional services, S&EB, and S&S to address the COVID-19 public health emergency.
Another factor contributing to the increase was the reallocation of homeless programs in order to allow better
program coordination and efficient delivery of services to the community.

e Expenditures for public assistance increased by $44,910, mainly due to increases in caseloads for CalWorks
and Child Welfare Services programs. In addition, there was an increase in S&EB in Social Services Agency
(SSA) for additional positions added to address increased State-mandated reporting requirements for the
California Statewide Automated Welfare System migration planning and development. Partially offsetting this
increase was a decrease in taxes and other fees for homeless services and a decrease in S&S in SSA due to
decreases in expenditures for leases, household expenses and purchase of office furniture, installations and
related services.

Flood Control District

This group of funds is used to account for the planning, construction, and operation of flood control and water
conservation works, such as dams, basins, and trunk channels, and for the retardation, conservation, and controlled
discharge of storm waters. At the end of FY 2019-20, there was an increase in fund balance of $30,539 compared to
last year’s increase of $48,088. Revenues and other financing sources decreased by $19,674, mainly due to lower
intergovernmental revenues received for the Santa Ana River (SAR) Subvention claims, and a decrease in other
revenues due to the sale of the Honda Center parking lot in the prior year. Expenditures and other financing uses
decreased by $2,125, primarily due to decreases in payments for the SAR Mainstem Project. The decreases were
offset by an increase in payments for the Santa Ana River Mainstem/Prado Dam project.

Other Public Protection

This group of funds accounts for revenues restricted for safety and law enforcement activities such as the child
support program, automated finger print identification systems, and investigation team. At the end of FY 2019-20,
there was an increase in fund balance of $16,568 compared to last year’s increase of $9,459. Revenues and other
financing sources increased by $3,263, which was primarily attributable to more revenue received from the
Department of Justice for the Regional Narcotics Suppression Program (RNSP), and an increase in State Criminal
Alien Assistance Program revenue received for costs incurred from incarcerating undocumented criminal aliens with
felony or misdemeanor convictions. Additionally, there was an increase in transfers from Clerk-Recorder’s restricted
fee revenue. Expenditures and other financing uses decreased by $3,846, mainly due to one-time purchase of items
such as radio communication, telephone, and telecommunication equipment in the prior year, and no RNSP
equitable sharing was paid to the cities in FY 2019-20.

Mental Health Services Act (MHSA)

This fund accounts for purpose restricted MHSA revenues. At the end of FY 2019-20, fund balance decreased by
$83,855 compared to last year's decrease of $32,052. Revenues and other financing sources decreased by
$20,406, primarily due to lower allocation from the State for approved mental health services. Expenditures
increased by $31,397, primarily due to an increase in transfers out to the General Fund for eligible reimbursement of
MHSA related services.

Other Governmental Funds

Other governmental funds encompass nonmajor funds, which include special revenue funds, debt service funds,
capital projects funds, and a permanent fund. At the end of FY 2019-20, fund balances increased by $4,235 in
comparison to prior year’s increase of $145,066. Revenues and other financing sources decreased by $298,064,
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primarily due to loan proceeds received in FY 2018-19 from the CMFA for the construction of Building 14, County
Administration North (CAN). The decrease was offset by an increase in transfers in for Non-General Fund multi-year
countywide capital projects, and the development of permanent supportive rental housing units for individuals
diagnosed with serious mental illness and eligible for MHSA services. Expenditures and other financing uses
decreased by $157,233, primarily due to a one-time transfer out from the loan proceeds in the prior year. The
decrease was offset by transfers out to fund General Fund capital projects, including the Be Well OC Hub, Yale
Transitional Center, and the Sheriff's Intake/Release Center project.

The following table shows fund balances and percentage change in fund balances for governmental funds for the
current and previous fiscal year:

COMPARATIVE FUND BALANCE
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019 Increase/(Decrease) %

General Fund $ 863,302 $ 790,733 9%
Flood Control District 487,839 457,300 7%
Other Public Protection 182,191 165,623 10 %
Mental Health Services Act 132,075 215,930 (39)%
Other Governmental Funds 1,026,670 1,022,435 --
Total $ 2,692,077 $ 2,652,021 2%

Proprietary Funds

The proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary funds financial statements provide separate information for the
Airport and OC Waste & Recycling funds, which are considered to be major funds of the County, and the
Compressed Natural Gas fund. Internal Service Funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the
proprietary funds financial statements.

Comparative Analysis of Changes in Fund Net Position

The following table presents the enterprise funds’ revenues, expenses, contributions, transfers, and changes in fund
net position for the current and previous fiscal year:

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, CONTRIBUTIONS, TRANSFERS, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
For the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Revenues, Contributions Expenses Change in
and Transfers and Transfers Fund Net Position
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Airport $ 146,606 $ 167,574 $ 132,866 $ 135,589 $ 13,740 $ 31,985
OC Waste & Recycling 194,163 189,300 141,632 137,710 52,531 51,590
Compressed Natural Gas 149 120 11 160 138 (40)
Total $ 340,918 $ 356,994 $ 274,509 $ 273,459 $ 66,409 $ 83,535

Airport

This fund accounts for major construction and self-supporting aviation related activities rendered at the Airport. At
the end of FY 2019-20, there was an increase of $13,740 in fund net position compared to the prior year increase of
$31,985. Revenues, contributions and transfers decreased by $20,968, primarily due to the lease deferral rent plan
which contributed to a decrease in auto parking fees, concessions, landing fees, airport fees, passenger and
terminal fees, partially offset by an increase in intergovernmental revenues as a result of monies received from the
FAA Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Grant 49. Expenses decreased by $2,723, mainly
due to a decrease in interest expense, partially offset by an increase in S&S.
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OC Waste & Recycling

This fund is used to account for the operation, expansion and closing of existing landfills. Monies are collected
through gate tipping fees, which users pay based primarily on tonnage. At the end of FY 2019-20, there was an
increase of $52,531 in fund net position compared to the prior year increase of $51,590. Revenues, contributions
and transfers increased by $4,863, which was primarily due to an increase in sanitation and landfill disposal tonnage
and fees collected for waste, recycling and importation. Expenses and transfers increased by $3,922, primarily due
to an increase in S&S, depreciation expense, professional and specialized services. These increases were offset by
a decrease in landfill site closure and post-closure care costs, taxes and other fees, and S&EB.

Compressed Natural Gas (CNG)

This fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the CNG facility. Revenues consist primarily of
compressed natural gas sales to fuel the County’s growing fleet of CNG-powered heavy equipment. At the end of
FY 2019-20, there was an increase of $138 in fund net position compared to the prior year decrease of $40.
Revenues increased by $29 due to a higher royalty payment from Clean Energy, and higher Federal Excise Tax
credit received for the Alternative Fuel. Expenditures decreased by $149 due to a decrease in utilities-purchased,
monthly maintenance and repairs, and services as Clean Energy took over the operations of the CNG station.

For further comparative analysis of Changes in Fund Net Position, please see the Business-Type Activities.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

This section provides a summary of the primary factors involved in the variances between: 1) the Original Budget
and the Final Budget; and 2) the Final Budget and the budgetary based Actual amounts for the General Fund. In
addition to the effects of expenditure-driven grants, the following information provides explanations for significant
variances. Refer to the General Fund Budgetary Comparison Statement for a full budgetary comparison.

Original Revenue Budget vs. Final Revenue Budget

The following provides a summary of the primary factors attributable to the increase or decrease in the General
Fund final budget revenues and other financing sources compared to the original budget revenues and other
financing sources:

Intergovernmental

¢ Anincrease of $558,500 in the Miscellaneous budget due to the anticipated federal assistance related to the
CARES Act funding for COVID-19 economic support, as well as an increase for anticipated grant monies from
the California Office of Emergency Services to initiate a pilot program to assist in the protection of life,
property, and infrastructure during a wildfire and to better protect Californians from wildfires through enhanced
resource allocation, early detection and immediate response.

e An increase of $6,280 in HCA mainly due to federal grant revenue for Whole Person Care and CalOptima,
which will enable HCA to strengthen the focus on housing, provide resources for non Medi-Cal reimbursable
services and fund programs to assist those living with serious mental iliness.

e An increase of $6,200 in Registrar of Voters due to State funding for the Voters Choice Act implementation
and the Voting System Replacement grants.

o Partially offsetting the increases in intergovernmental revenue was a decrease of $9,733 in OC Community
Resources (OCCR) for State revenue due to the reallocation of homeless services to HCA, which will allow
increased program coordination in the efficient delivery of services to the community.

Transfers In

e Anincrease of $24,120 in HCA to support ongoing program costs, and to cover anticipated increased eligible
program costs funded by the OC Tobacco Settlement.

e An increase of $11,439 in Capital Projects mainly due to the additional funding for the Facilities Master Plan
and other multi-year capital projects.

e An increase of $4,061 in the Sheriff-Coroner Department primarily due to transfers from the Sheriff's State
Criminal Assistance Program to reimburse costs related to the tracking and collection of criminal activity
information and to support the costs incurred from the incarceration of undocumented criminal aliens with
felony or misdemeanor convictions.
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e An increase of $3,153 in Data Systems Development Projects primarily due to the additional funding for
Countywide IT projects, and unspent multi-year IT projects, which were delayed to FY 2020-21.

Final Revenue Budget vs. Actual Revenue Amounts

The following information provides a summary of the primary factors that caused significant variances in the General
Fund actual revenues and other financing sources compared to the final revenue and other financing sources

budget:

Intergovernmental

e A $535,366 less than budgeted amount was primarily comprised of the following:

$498,025 less in the Miscellaneous Fund due to eligible COVID-19 expenditures not being incurred for
reimbursement from CARES Act funding.

$10,041 less received in HCA primarily due to a decrease in revenues for substance use disorder
services, adult mental health outpatient services, and the Medical Safety Net, as well as a lower amount
received for eligible expenditures associated with MHSA/Prop 63 services.

$9,602 less received in Probation due to lower than expected revenues for Joplin Youth Center, Youth
Leadership Academy, and Postrelease Community Supervision Division.

$8,810 less received in Sheriff Court Operations due to lower than expected revenues for court services
as a result of COVID-19.

$7,272 less received in the Sheriff-Coroner due to lower than expected revenues for Theo Lacy Facility
and James A Musick Facility as a result of lower AB109 realignment allocations.

Partially offsetting the overall less than budgeted amounts was an increase of $16,810 in SSA as a result
of reimbursement for COVID-19 related claims from the CARES Act Federal Funds and higher than
expected revenue for Foster Care Assistance payments.

Transfers In
e A $125,755 less than budgeted amount was primarily comprised of the following:

$72,332 less received in HCA due to lower than expected drawdowns in the MHSA Fund and OC
Tobacco Settlement Revenue.

$15,916 less received in SSA mainly attributable to lower than budgeted reimbursements from
Wraparound expenditures and less utility cost reimbursements for the Tustin Family Campus Program.
$8,000 less received in Capital Projects from the Countywide Capital Projects Non-General Fund due to a
delay in the OC Waste & Recycling - Landfill Postclosure Maintenance Project.

$6,280 less received in the District Attorney Department due to lower than expected drawdowns from
Prop 64 Consumer Protection and the Excess Public Safety Sales Tax.

$6,000 less revenue in the General Fund due to lower than anticipated transfers of Teeter penalties and
interest.

$4,786 less received in Sheriff-Coroner due to lower transfers from the Countywide Capital Projects Non-
General Fund due to less expenditures for the Automated Jail System. Additionally, less transfers were
received from the Prop 69 DNA lIdentification Fund and the Sheriff Narcotics Program due to reduced
spending in service contracts.

Original Expenditure Budget vs. Final Expenditure Budget

The following provides a brief summary of the primary factors attributable to the increase or decrease in the
General Fund final budget expenditures and other financing uses compared to the original budget expenditures
and other financing uses:

Miscellaneous

e An increase of $555,020, mainly due to an increase in appropriations to mitigate the COVID-19 health
emergency. The COVID-19 pandemic emergency may result in some County department expenditures
exceeding current appropriations.
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Health Care Agency
e An increase of $41,341 primarily due to reorganization of homeless programs to HCA to increase program
coordination and efficient delivery of services to the community.

OC Community Resources
e A decrease of $18,979 primarily due to reorganization of the Homeless Services division to HCA to increase
efficiency in the delivery of services to the community.

Final Expenditure Budget vs. Actual Expenditure Amounts

The following provides a summary of the primary factors that caused significant variances in the General Fund
actual expenditures as compared to the final budget:

Miscellaneous
e $508,753 less than budgeted amount due to eligible COVID-19 expenditures have not been incurred or
claimed against CARES Act funds.

Health Care Agency

e $59,126 less than budgeted amount mainly due to lower than anticipated expenditures for S&EB, professional
and specialized services associated with MHSA programs, as well as lower expenditures for IT professional
services.

Sheriff-Coroner

o $23,625 less than budgeted amount primarily due to lower than expected costs for professional and specialized
contracted services, lower salary and performance incentive pay expenditures and the department reducing or
deferring facility maintenance and equipment purchases.

Probation
o $12,222 less than budgeted amount mainly due to lower than anticipated expenditures for S&EB, professional
and specialized services associated with the Joplin Youth Center.

District Attorney
e $11,243 less than budgeted amount mainly as a result of lower expenditures for S&EB, professional and

specialized contracted services, transportation and travel, and the deferral of IT hardware purchases.

Capital Projects

e $11,138 less than budgeted amount was primarily due to the delayed construction of the various structure and
improvement projects such as El Toro Development, Civic Center Master Plan Phase Il, and Yale Transitional
Center.

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2020, the County’s capital assets for both the governmental and business-type activities amounted to
$4,373,683 net of accumulated depreciation. The investment in capital assets includes land, structures and
improvements, land improvements, equipment, software, infrastructure, intangible in progress, land use rights,
and construction in progress. The total increase in the County’s investment in capital assets for the current year
was 4%.
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Capital assets for the governmental and business-type activities are presented below to illustrate changes:

CAPITAL ASSETS

(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Governmental Business-Type Increase
Activities Activities Total (Decrease)
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 % Change
Land $ 871,319 $ 855,763 $ 38,379 $ 38,3719 $ 909,698 $ 894,142 2%
Structures and
Improvements 819,263 649,912 534,484 550,660 1,353,747 1,200,572 13 %
Land Improvements 3,077 3,319 603 - 3,680 3,319 11 %
Equipment 187,638 174,904 43,797 38,332 231,435 213,236 9 %
Software 34,573 39,832 2,727 3,142 37,300 42,974 (13)%
Infrastructure 1,302,875 1,235,355 286,240 302,063 1,589,115 1,537,418 3%
Intangible in Progress 18,798 13,610 749 291 19,547 13,901 41 %
Land Use Rights 6,439 6,439 - - 6,439 6,439 -
Construction in
Progress 182,788 264,494 39,934 16,516 222,722 281,010 21)%
Total $ 3,426,770 $ 3,243,628 $ 946,913 $ 949,383 $ 4,373,683 $ 4,193,011 4%

The following lists the significant expenditures for capital assets in FY 2019-20:

General Fund

e $14,677 for the purchase of the Hart Voting System for the November 3, 2020 General election

e $12,638 for the purchase of the Yale Transitional Center to provide community services in Central Orange
County

$2,841 for the Property Tax System Re-platforming Project

$1,717 for the purchase of mail extractors and mailing sorting equipment for election services

$1,622 for the purchase of IT hardware, software and services for District Attorney

$1,600 for the construction costs associated with District Attorney Osborne Building remodeling

$1,427 for the replacement of air handlers at the County Operations Center-Building B

$1,241 for the installation of Tridium Alarm Front End at various locations

$1,102 for the purchase of telecommunication equipment and computer equipment for the Sheriff-Coroner
$1,030 for of the replacement of HVAC units at the Orangewood Children and Family Center

Flood Control District

$18,429 for the Fullerton Creek Channel Project

$9,179 for the purchase of property for the Santa Ana River Mainstem and Prado Dam Project
$4,977 for the Lane Channel Improvements

$2,386 for the East Garden Grove Wintersburg Channel Project

$2,134 for the purchase of construction equipment such as a crane and backhoe loader
$1,272 for the Huntington Beach Channel Sheet Piling Project

$1,066 for the maintenance of the Prima Deshecha Channel

$1,023 for the San Diego Sediment Removal Project

Other Public Protection
e $1,258 for the purchase of 800 MHZ Countywide Coordinated Communications System

Other Governmental Funds

e $24,677 for the Civic Center Facilities Master Plan, Building 16 Construction Project
e $24,459 for the Civic Center Facilities Master Plan, Building 14 Construction Project
o $4,659 for the Juvenile Hall-Gym and Visitation Center

e $2,815 for OC Zoo entry plaza and restroom
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e $2,113 for the replacement of air handlers at the Central Men’s Jail, the Central Women’s Jail, and
Headquarters

$2,113 for the James A. Musick Facility Master Plan, Phase | Project

$2,045 for the La Pata Avenue Gap Closure/Widening, Phase | & Il Project

$1,725 for the James A. Musick Facility Master Plan, Phase Il Project

$1,701 for Laguna Canyon Road Segment 4, Phase Il Project

$1,582 for the Irvine Park Drainage Improvements Project

$1,224 for the remodel and renovation at the Central Jails Complex, and the purchase and installation of
furniture at the Central Men’s Jail and the Central Women’s Jail

o $1,146 for the Old Courthouse exterior repairs

Airport

$11,274 for the Airport Operations Center

$9,812 for the infrastructure work of the Concession Development
$3,798 for the replacement of Terminal A & B air handlers

$1,781 for the generator engines blackstart in the Central Plant
$1,745 for the rental car reconfiguration

$1,087 for the Terminals A & B HVAC ducting refurbishments

OC Waste & Recycling

e $5,738 for the purchase of heavy equipment for the Prima Zone and South Regional Landfill

e $4,039 for the purchase of heavy equipment at the Olinda Alpha Landfill and the North Regional Landfill

e $1,348 for the purchase of heavy equipment at the Frank R. Bowerman Landfill and the Central Regional
Landfill

e $1,280 for the Prima steel materials storage structure

e $1,111 for the Bee Canyon Greenery Composting Facility

Internal Service Funds
e $5,789 for the purchase of vehicles for OC Fleet Services

Additional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in Note 4, Changes in Capital Assets.

Commitments for Capital Expenditures
At the end of FY 2019-20, significant commitments for capital expenditures included the following:

$158,579 for the Civic Center Facilities Master Plan, Building 14

$53,445 for the East Garden Grove-Winterburg Channel U/S Warner

$11,062 for the purchase of various vehicles

$6,868 for the Orange County Zoo-Oak Woodland Exhibit

$4,767 for the Bee Canyon Greenery Project

$4,157 for the Airport Operations Center

$4,073 for the Capistrano Greenery Project

$3,565 for the James A. Musick Facility Expansion, Phase | Project

$2,832 for the James A. Musick Facility Expansion, Phase Il Project

$2,787 for the Intake Release Center facility modifications-Mental Health Upgrade

Additional information on the County’s commitments for capital expenditures can be found in Note 15,
Construction and Other Significant Commitments.

Long-Term Debt

At June 30, 2020, the County had total debt obligations outstanding of $593,661 excluding long-term liabilities
such as compensated absences payable, pension, OPEB, and capital lease obligations payable. During the year,
the County’s outstanding bond obligations decreased by 2% which is primarily attributable to the redemption of
$87,837 in bond obligations and a decrease of $12,022 in Interest Accretion on Capital Appreciation Bonds
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(CABs). This was partially offset by the issuance of $83,708 in Teeter Plan Notes and $1,911 in Interest Accretion
on CABs.

The County is limited by law in issuing general obligation bonded debt to 1.25% of the last equalized assessment
property tax roll values. However, this does not affect the financing of any of the County’s planned facilities or
services. As of the end of the fiscal year, the County had no net general obligation bonded debt. The County’s
debt obligations are in the form of revenue bonds and other forms of debt not covered by the general obligation
bonded debt limitation.

The following table summarizes the County’s outstanding bonds at June 30, 2020 and 2019:

LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Governmental Business-Type Increase
Activities Activities Total (Decrease)
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 % Change
Revenue Bonds $ 386,745 $ 388,720 $ 83,080 $ 85,030 $ 469,825 $ 473,750 (1)%
Pension Obligation Bonds 2,967 5,445 - - 2,967 5,445 (46)%
Teeter Plan Notes (Direct Placement) 34,661 29,507 -- - 34,661 29,507 17 %
Add: Premium

on Bonds Payable 60,736 60,949 10,382 13,049 71,118 73,998 (4)%

Add: Interest Accretion
on CABs 15,090 25,201 - - 15,090 25,201 (40)%
Total $ 500,199 $ 509,822 $ 93,462 $ 98,079 $ 593,661 $ 607,901 (2)%

The following summarizes the County’s long-term debt issuance during FY 2019-20:

Teeter Plan Notes On December 28, 2018 and June 20, 2019, the County used all of the accumulated base taxes
to redeem $22,084 and $9,516, respectively, of the Teeter Plan Obligation Notes. As of June 30, 2019, the
outstanding principal amount of the Teeter Plan Obligation Notes was $29,507.

On July 15, 2019, additional Teeter Plan Notes were issued in the amount of $40,269 to finance the delinquent
property tax receivables associated with the Teeter Plan for a new outstanding balance of $69,776.

On December 23, 2019, the County used all of the accumulated base taxes to redeem $26,337 of the Teeter Plan
Obligation Notes for a new outstanding balance of $43,439.

Due to the anticipated economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, on April 21, 2020, the Board approved an
increase in the authorized amount from $100,000 to $150,000. On June 24, 2020, the County used accumulated
base taxes to redeem $8,778 of the Teeter Plan Obligation Notes. As of June 30, 2020, the outstanding principal
amount of the Teeter Plan Obligation Notes was $34,661 and the authorized, unused available commitment under
the First Amendment to Amended and Restated Note Purchase and Reimbursement Agreement was $115,339.

At the time of the increase in authorized amount, the prior notes in the amount of $43,439 were paid off, and new
notes in the amount of $43,439 were issued.

Additional information on the County’s long-term debt activity can be found in Note 11, Long-Term Obligations, and
Note 21, Subsequent Events.

Bond Ratings

The County maintained its Issuer Credit Rating of Aa1 from Moody's Investors Service (Moody’s), AA+ from
Standard & Poor’s Global Ratings (S&P), and AAA Issuer Default Rating from Fitch Ratings.

In October 2020, S&P lowered its long-term rating of the Airport Revenue Refunding Bonds to A+ from AA-. For
additional information on the bond rating, refer to Note 21, Subsequent Events.
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The County has the following long-term underlying debt ratings:

LONG-TERM DEBT RATINGS
June 30, 2020

S&P Moody’s Fitch
2016 Lease Revenue Bonds AA NR NR
Teeter Plan Notes NR NR NR
1997A Pension Obligation Bonds NR Aal AA+
Airport 2019A Revenue Refunding Bonds AA- NR NR
Airport 2019B Revenue Refunding Bonds AA- NR NR

OTHER POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT MATTERS

The County’s management has determined that the following are significant matters that have a potential impact on
the County’s financial position or changes in financial position:

State Legislation and Budget

System of Care
The County is working together with cities to respond to regional community needs in addressing homelessness.

The continuous partnership between the County and each of the 34 cities in Orange County is essential to meet the
needs of people experiencing homelessness and leverages the funding available with the Building Homes and Jobs
Act (SB 2) or other programs such as the State’s No Place Like Home, Whole Person Care, and the Special Needs
Housing Programs. In June 2018, the County issued its Housing Funding Strategy to create 2,700 permanent
supportive housing units. This is in addition to funding three city-operated emergency shelters in Buena Park,
Placentia, Huntington Beach, and construction and opening of the Yale Transitional Center to transition the
operations of the Courtyard Transitional Center to a more suitable building. The COVID-19 pandemic required the
mobilization of community partners and stakeholders to develop an emergency response to provide no-congregate
shelter to individuals experiencing homelessness who are at high-risk for severe COVID-19 iliness through Project
Roomkey. The participants of Project Roomkey were provided an opportunity to access other resources of the
System of Care including bridge housing, housing navigation to assist individuals and families experiencing
homelessness in overcoming barriers as they transition to permanent housing, receive assistance to apply for
disability benefits, and access other support services that promote housing stability. The County applied to the
California Department of Housing and Community Development for Homekey Projects for funding to secure motel
buildings and convert them into interim or/and permanent, long-term housing. The County was successful in
receiving Homekey funding from the State to purchase two motels to increase the community’s response to
homelessness and the COVID-19 pandemic. These hotels will create 132 units of interim housing and will transition
into permanent supportive housing in approximately three years. The County also supports city-led homeless
service programs through field-based outreach teams that integrate with County behavioral health resources.

CARES Act and FEMA Revenue for COVID-19

In April 2020, the County received $554,134 from the United States Treasury CRF. Use of the funds is subject to
the restrictions outlined in the CARES Act. The CARES Act provided funds to state, territorial, local, and tribal
governments. In addition to the $554,134, the State allocated a portion of its CARES Act funds to counties and
cities, of which the County is allocated $73,509. As of June 30, 2020, the County used $166,446 from the United
States Treasury CRF allocation for eligible COVID-19 related expenditures. All CARES Act funds must be spent
by December 30, 2020 according to the Federal guidelines issued by the United States Treasury. In addition to
the allocations mentioned above, the Airport received dedicated funding of $44,910 from the Federal Aviation
Administration-CARES Act Airport Grants, which are restricted to Airport use only.

The County will also receive reimbursement for eligible COVID-19-related expenditures from the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). On March 13, 2020, the President declared the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic of sufficient severity and magnitude to warrant an emergency declaration for all states, tribes,
territories, and the District of Columbia pursuant to section 501 (b) of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and
Emergency Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. 5121-5207 (the “Stafford Act”). State, territorial, tribal, local government
entities and certain private non-profit organizations are eligible to apply for public assistance. In June 2020, the
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County submitted FEMA claims for five eligible COVID-19 projects: Emergency Operations Center, Testing Kits,
Personal Protective Equipment, Project RoomKey, and the Great Plates Program. In addition to CARES Act and
FEMA funding, some county departments are receiving additional funding from the state/federal governments for
other eligible program costs related to COVID-19.

Long-Term Financial Planning

Funding Progress of the County’s Retirement System (System)

The funded ratio of the System is a measure of the ability of the System to make obligated payments to current
retirees and future retirees. The funded ratio (valuation value of plan assets divided by actuarial accrued liability)
dropped from 82.76% in 2002 to 70.85% in 2004. Since 2004, the funded ratio increased to 74.08% in 2007 before
dropping to 62.52% in 2012. As of December 31, 2019, the funding ratio for the System is 73.17%, which is an
increase from 72.43% in 2018. The System’s Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) increased from $5.71
billion ($4.59 billion attributable to the County) to $5.88 billion ($4.75 billion attributable to the County). The increase
in the UAAL is primarily attributable to unfavorable investment returns (after smoothing) and COLA increase for
retirees larger than expected, which were slightly offset by salary increase less than expected.

On November 4, 2008, the voters in Orange County approved Measure J, which requires voter approval for any
future pension benefit enhancements. The County carefully monitors the activities at OCERS and regularly provides
input to OCERS management, as well as providing input at OCERS Board meetings as deemed appropriate.

Reduction in OCERS Assumed Investment Rate of Return
The assumed investment rate of return is the rate of investment yield that the Plan will earn over the long-term
future.

On December 5, 2012, the OCERS Board voted to reduce the assumed investment rate of return from 7.75% to
7.25%. The reduction was phased in over a two-year period beginning July 2014 at 7.5% and reducing to 7.25%
effective July 2015. On October 16, 2017, the OCERS Board adopted a reduction in the assumed investment rate of
return to 7.00% effective July 1, 2019. The assumed rate of return reduction had the impact of increasing
contribution rates of members and plan sponsors.

OCERS Actuarial Funding Policy (Amortization)

On November 18, 2013, the OCERS Board adopted the actuarial funding policy to reduce the amortization period for
future UAAL from 30 years to 20 years, which included combining and re-amortizing the entire outstanding UAAL
balance as of December 31, 2012, over a single 20-year period. This will allow for future UAAL to be paid off in a
shorter period of time and will ultimately reduce retirement rates and costs over time.

OCERS Actuarial Assumptions

The 2014 through 2016 valuations were impacted by economic assumption changes, which flowed from the 2014
Triennial Study of Actuarial Assumptions. These changes, adopted by the OCERS Board on September 23, 2014,
included a decrease in the inflation assumption from 3.25% to 3.00% per annum. As a result of the 2017 Triennial
Study of Actuarial Assumptions, the OCERS Board, on October 16, 2017, adopted a further decrease in the inflation
assumption to 2.75%, which was effective with the 2017 valuation. On August 17, 2020, the OCERS Board adopted
another decrease in the inflation rate assumption to 2.50%, while maintaining the post-retirement cost-of-living
adjustment (COLA) at 2.75%. The new assumption changes will be effective with the 2020 valuation.

Requests for Information

We hope that the preceding information provides a general overview of the County’s overall financial status. For
guestions or comments concerning information contained in this report, please contact the Auditor-Controller’s
Office, County of Orange, 1770 N Broadway, Santa Ana, CA 92706 or you can access our website at
WWWw.ac.0cgov.com.
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County of Orange

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
June 30, 2020

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Primary Government Component Units
Governmental Business-Type Governmental Proprietary
Activities Activities Total CFCoC CalOptima
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,178,927 $ 723,231 $ 3,902,158 $ 45748 % 438,777
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 231,029 142,820 373,849 - 300
Investments - 45,511 45,511 - 1,306,289
Deposits In-Lieu of Cash 367 24,753 25,120 -- --
Internal Balances 4,389 (4,389) -- - -
Due from Component Unit 380 -- 380 - -
Due from Primary Government -- -- -- 295 --
Prepaid Costs 379,762 5,582 385,344 31 49,769
Inventory of Materials and Supplies 2,316 -- 2,316 - -
Receivables, Net of Allowances
Accounts 12,431 29,657 42,088 - 403,300
Taxes 34,963 - 34,963 2,974 -
Interest/Dividends 7,043 1,995 9,038 153 --
Deposits 12,541 - 12,541 3,924 -
Advances 453 - 453 - -
Leases 88,989 -- 88,989 -- --
Due from Other Governmental Agencies, Net 393,951 7,685 401,636 6,539 -
Notes Receivable, Net 26,097 - 26,097 - -
Net Pension Asset - -- -- 646 -
Capital Assets
Not Depreciable/Amortizable 1,079,344 79,062 1,158,406 -- 9,255
Depreciable/Amortizable, Net 2,347,426 867,851 3,215,277 -- 37,400
Total Capital Assets 3,426,770 946,913 4,373,683 - 46,655
Total Assets 7,800,408 1,923,758 9,724,166 60,310 2,245,090
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charge on Refunding - 2,130 2,130 - -
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pension 847,180 16,803 863,983 18 10,388
Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB 27,242 520 27,762 24 1,273
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 874,422 19,453 893,875 42 11,661

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Basic Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable
Salaries and Employee Benefits Payable
Retainage Payable
Interest Payable
Deposits from Others
Due to Primary Government
Due to Other Governmental Agencies
Unearned Revenue
Short-Term Bonds Payable
Long-Term Liabilities
Due Within One Year
Civic Center Facilities Master Plan Loan
Interest Accretion on Capital Appreciation Bonds Payable
Insurance Claims Payable
Medical Claims Payable
Capitation and Withholds
Compensated Employee Absences Payable
Capital Lease Obligations Payable
Bonds Payable
Pollution Remediation Obligation
Intangible Assets Obligations Payable
Landfill Site Closure/Postclosure Liability
Due in More than One Year
Civic Center Facilities Master Plan Loan
Interest Accretion on Capital Appreciation Bonds Payable
Insurance Claims Payable
Compensated Employee Absences Payable
Capital Lease Obligations Payable
Notes Payable
Bonds Payable
Pollution Remediation Obligation
Intangible Assets Obligations Payable
Landfill Site Closure/Postclosure Liability
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

Deferred Inflows for Service Concession Arrangements
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Expendable
Pension Benefits
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Legally Segregated for Grants and Other Purposes
Regional Park Endowment
CalOptima
Passenger Facility Charges Approved Capital Projects
Capital Projects-Replacements and Renewals
Landfill Closure/Postclosure
Landfill Corrective Action
Wetland
Prima Deshecha/La Pata Closure
Nonexpendable
Regional Park Endowment
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Total Net Position

Primary Government

Component Units

Governmental Governmental Proprietary
Activities Total CFCOC CalOptima
$ 138,938 166,740 $ 4531 $ 8,300
66,177 67,682 46 13,622
5,834 7,022 1,363 -
4,511 6,588 - -
94,139 123,281 - -

- - 380 -

41,906 54,703 4,926 677,498
462,707 464,875 - 22,693
463,895 463,895 - -
3,211 3,211 - -
13,049 13,049 - -
57,917 57,917 - -

- - - 306,902

- - - 142,981

107,023 109,527 65 -
6,610 6,610 - -
4,868 18,420 - -

- 698 - -

721 793 - -

- 3,680 - -
384,433 384,433 - -
2,041 2,041 - -
165,758 165,758 - -
72,781 74,523 21 -
25,092 25,092 - -
34,661 34,661 - -
57,936 137,846 - -

- 15,487 - -

1,174 1,176 - -

- 180,701 - -
4,037,059 4,125,372 - 27,123
322,267 328,412 245 25,824
6,574,708 7,044,193 11,577 1,224,943
616,912 628,735 1,620 4,235
29,740 30,307 26 2,442
70,418 70,418 - -
717,070 729,460 1,646 6,677
3,319,173 4,175,423 - 46,494
135,342 135,342 - -
162,614 162,614 - -
33,179 44,770 - -
1,212,985 1,212,985 - -
167 167 - -

- - - 100,574

- 8,158 - -

- 1,000 - -

- 27,730 - -

- 8,820 - -

- 879 - -

- 104 - -

200 200 - -
(3,480,608) (2,933,804) 47,129 878,063
$ 1,383,052 2,844,388  $ 47,129 $ 1,025,131

41



County of Orange

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Expenses Program Revenues
Indirect Operating Capital
Direct Expenses Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Allocation Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General Government $ 361,582 $ (47,999) $ 45713 % 87,876 $ 10,759
Public Protection 1,539,583 31,554 299,121 709,037 7,155
Public Ways and Facilities 162,586 (4,230) 54,762 106,745 116,218
Health and Sanitation 746,443 6,553 140,631 485,875 6,939
Public Assistance 1,210,469 9,347 38,431 1,104,754 47
Education 47,919 926 575 1,826 -
Recreation and Cultural Services 120,296 2,398 26,143 4,255 -
Interest on Long-Term Debt 33,617 -- -- -- --
Total Governmental Activities 4,222,495 (1,451) 605,376 2,500,368 141,118
Business-Type Activities
Airport 132,196 608 135,273 5,281 -
OC Waste & Recycling 130,012 841 179,542 3 --
Compressed Natural Gas 9 2 95 1 --
Total Business-Type Activities 262,217 1,451 314,910 5,285 --
Total Primary Government $ 4,484,712 $ - $ 920,286 $ 2,505,653  $ 141,118
Component Units
Children and Families
Commission of Orange County $ 30,681 $ - $ - $ 29,505 $ -
CalOptima 3,786,560 - 3,833,145 - -
Total Component Units $ 3817241 $ - $ 3833145 $ 29505 $ -

General Revenues

Taxes

Property Taxes, Levied for General Fund
Property Taxes, Levied for Flood Control District
Property Taxes, Levied for OC Parks

Property Taxes, Levied for OC Public Libraries

Property Taxes in-Lieu of Motor Vehicle License Fees

Other Taxes

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs
State Allocation of Motor Vehicle License Fees
Unrestricted Investment Earnings

Miscellaneous

Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Position

Net Position-Beginning of Year
Net Position-End of Year

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Basic Financial Statements
Statement of Activities
(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Net (Expense) Revenue and Change in Net Position

Primary Government

Component Units

Governmental Business-Type Governmental Proprietary
Activities Activities Total CFCOC CalOptima Functions/Programs
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
$ (169,235) $ - $ (169,235) $ - $ - General Government
(555,824) -- (555,824) -- -- Public Protection
119,369 - 119,369 - - Public Ways and Facilities
(119,551) -- (119,551) -- -- Health and Sanitation
(76,584) -- (76,584) -- -- Public Assistance
(46,444) -- (46,444) -- -- Education
(92,296) -- (92,296) -- -- Recreation and Cultural Services
(33,617) -- (33,617) -- -- Interest on Long-Term Debt
(974,182) -- (974,182) -- -- Total Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities
-- 7,750 7,750 -- -- Airport
- 48,692 48,692 - -- OC Waste & Recycling
-- 85 85 -- -- Compressed Natural Gas
-- 56,527 56,527 -- -- Total Business-Type Activities
(974,182) 56,527 (917,655) -- -- Total Primary Government
Component Units
Children and Families
(1,176) -- Commission of Orange County
- 46,585 CalOptima
(1,176) 46,585 Total Component Units
General Revenues
Taxes
332,635 - 332,635 - -- Property Taxes, Levied for General Fund
115,908 -- 115,908 -- -- Property Taxes, Levied for Flood Control District
89,804 - 89,804 - -- Property Taxes, Levied for OC Parks
56,767 -- 56,767 -- -- Property Taxes, Levied for OC Public Libraries
418,370 - 418,370 - -- Property Taxes in-Lieu of Motor Vehicle License Fees
104,863 50 104,913 - - Other Taxes
11,673 - 11,673 - - Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to Specific Programs
838 - 838 - -- State Allocation of Motor Vehicle License Fees
30,538 19,771 50,309 1,021 43,004 Unrestricted Investment Earnings
53,631 87 53,718 6,600 -- Miscellaneous
9,826 (9,826) -- -- -- Transfers
1,224,853 10,082 1,234,935 7,621 43,004 Total General Revenues and Transfers
250,671 66,609 317,280 6,445 89,589 Change in Net Position
1,132,381 1,394,727 2,527,108 40,684 935,542  Net Position-Beginning of Year
$ 1,383,052 % 1461336 $ 2,844388 $ 47129 % 1,025,131 Net Position-End of Year
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June 30, 2020

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

ASSETS

Pooled Cash/Investments
Cash/Cash Equivalents
Imprest Cash Funds
Restricted Cash and Investments with Trustee
Deposits In-Lieu of Cash
Receivables
Accounts
Taxes
Interest/Dividends
Deposits
Advances
Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables
Due from Other Funds
Due from Component Unit
Due from Other Governmental Agencies, Net
Inventory of Materials and Supplies
Prepaid Costs
Notes Receivable, Net
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable
Retainage Payable
Salaries and Employee Benefits Payable
Interest Payable
Deposits from Others
Due to Other Funds
Due to Other Governmental Agencies
Unearned Revenue
Bonds Payable
Advances from Other Funds
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable Revenue-Intergovernmental Revenues
Unavailable Revenue-Senate Bill 90 Mandated Claims, Net
Unavailable Revenue-Property Taxes
Unavailable Revenue-Other

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balances

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Flood Other

General Control Public
Fund District Protection
$ 1,137,361 $ 502,094 $ 191,808
- - 12,798
1,838 -- --
5 - -
12,054 776 126
6,089 1,654 --
2,688 1,129 484
508 11,974 --
453 - -
(3,415) (68 -
138,553 1,661 3,311
378 - --
334,646 11,291 3,568
1,488 364 282
458,586 6,027 1,396
$ 2,091,232 3 536,902 $ 213,773
$ 74,192 $ 8,716 $ 855
2,724 2,067 -
61,471 905 195
3,852 -- --
1,788 16,807 18,202
55,937 9,533 6,708
32,136 -- 4,512
431,777 1,382 -
463,895 - --
185 -- --
1,127,957 39,410 30,472
78,650 8,585 1,110
5,406 -- --
7,109 993 -
8,808 75 --
99,973 9,653 1,110
460,074 6,391 1,678
78,982 481,448 180,513
106,929 -- --
217,317 -- --
863,302 487,839 182,191
$ 2,091,232 3 536,902 $ 213,773
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Basic Financial Statements
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

Mental Other Total
Health Governmental Governmental
Services Act Funds Funds
ASSETS
$ 177,150 $ 845,035 $ 2,853,448 Pooled Cash/Investments
- - 12,798 Cash/Cash Equivalents
-- 45 1,883 Imprest Cash Funds
-- 231,024 231,029 Restricted Cash and Investments with Trustee
-- 367 367 Deposits In-Lieu of Cash
Receivables
- 2,183 15,139 Accounts
-- 27,220 34,963 Taxes
461 1,654 6,416 Interest/Dividends
- 59 12,541 Deposits
-- - 453 Advances
-- (289) (3,772) Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables
6 60,068 203,599 Due from Other Funds
-- - 378 Due from Component Unit
14,942 29,082 393,529 Due from Other Governmental Agencies, Net
-- - 2,134 Inventory of Materials and Supplies
-- 17,597 483,606 Prepaid Costs
-- 26,097 26,097 Notes Receivable, Net
$ 192,559 $ 1,240,142 $ 4,274,608 Total Assets
LIABILITIES
$ - $ 25,089 $ 108,852 Accounts Payable
- 1,020 5,811 Retainage Payable
- 2,820 65,391 Salaries and Employee Benefits Payable
-- 51 3,903 Interest Payable
- 57,342 94,139 Deposits from Others
60,484 49,836 182,498 Due to Other Funds
- 5,258 41,906 Due to Other Governmental Agencies
- 29,548 462,707 Unearned Revenue
- - 463,895 Bonds Payable
- 29,867 30,052 Advances from Other Funds
60,484 200,831 1,459,154 Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
-- 11,516 99,861 Unavailable Revenue-Intergovernmental Revenues
-- - 5,406 Unavailable Revenue-Senate Bill 90 Mandated Claims, Net
-- 1,098 9,200 Unavailable Revenue-Property Taxes
-- 27 8,910 Unavailable Revenue-Other
-- 12,641 123,377 Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
FUND BALANCES
-- 17,797 485,940 Nonspendable
132,075 794,729 1,667,747 Restricted
-- 214,144 321,073 Assigned
-- -- 217,317 Unassigned
132,075 1,026,670 2,692,077 Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
$ 192,559 $ 1,240,142 $ 4,274,608 and Fund Balances
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(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

The governmental funds balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balances-total governmental funds
and net position-governmental activities as reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. The
difference in fund balances of ($1,309,025) is due to the long-term economic focus of the Statement of Net Position
versus the short-term economic focus of the governmental funds. The components of the difference are described
below.

Total Fund Balances-Governmental Funds $ 2,692,077

Capital assets used in the operations of the County are not reported in the
governmental funds financial statements:

Land 871,319
Structures and Improvements 1,577,775
Equipment 371,276
Software 142,759
Infrastructure 2,015,577
Land Use Rights (Permanent) 6,439
Land Improvements 4,256
Construction in Progress 181,289
Intangible in Progress 18,798
Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization (1,820,772) 3,368,716

Other assets used in governmental activities do not consume current
financial resources, and therefore, are not reported in the governmental
funds:

Prepaid Pension Investment with OCERS 135,342
Installment Receivables from Service Concession Arrangement 88,989

The assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows
of resources of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the Statement of Net Position. 105,746

Deferred outflows of resources are similar to assets, but they do not meet
the definition of an asset at June 30, 2020. When all the recognition
criteria are met, the deferred outflows of resources will become an
expense. The counterpart to deferred outflows of resources are deferred
inflows of resources, which do not meet the definition of a liability at June
30, 2020. When all recognition criteria are met, the deferred inflows of
resources will become revenue, except for pension and OPEB related
deferred inflows of resources which will be recognized as a credit to
expense. The County reports the different types of deferred outflows and
inflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position as follows:

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Employer retirement contribution subsequent to measurement

date 596,154
Employer retirement contribution subsequent to measuremen